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VISION

Expanding the
world’s knowledge
of magnesium and

ecological fertilisers

markets in the 21st
green era.
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POSITIONING
STATEMENT

One of the leading and
largest vertically integrated
businesses covering
magnesium and ecological
fertilisers to achieve green
technological innovations
and operational efficiencies and
effectiveness in Asia.
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The directors (the “Directors” and individually a “Director”) of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) up to the date of this
report are as follow:

Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Yang Yuchuan

Non-executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Liu Hoi Keung

Sheng Hong

Company Secretary
Luk Sai Wai, Simon

Committees

Audit Committee

Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Liu Hoi Keung

Sheng Hong

Nomination Committee
Chi Wen Fu (Committee Chairman)
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Remuneration Committee
Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Liu Hoi Keung

Shum Sai Chit

Sheng Hong

Head Office
Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2802 2165

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

E-mail: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk
Website: www.centurysunshine.com.hk
Auditors

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
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Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Listing Information

Listing Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”)

Stock code 509

Key Dates
5 March 2014 Announcement of 2013 annual results

23 April 2014 to Closure of register of members

28 April 2014 (for annual general meeting)
(both days inclusive)
28 April 2014 Annual general meeting
5 May 2014 to Closure of register of members
13 May 2014 (for 2013 final dividend)
(both days inclusive)
27 June 2014 Proposed payments of 2013 final dividend

Share Information
Company’s shares of HK$0.02 each
(the “Shares”) in issue
(31 December 2013)
Market capitalisation (31 December 2013)
Board lot size

2,600,670,868 Shares

HKS$2,106,543,403
5,000 Shares

Earnings Per Share for 2013
Basic
Diluted

8.96 HK cents
8.69 HK cents

Dividend Per Share for 2013
Interim
Final (proposed)

Nil HK cents
2.00 HK cents

Share Registrar and Transfer Offices
Principal:
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong

To be relocated with effect from 31 March 2014 to:
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands
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. FIVEYEARFINANCIAL SUMMARY

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
FTEx FAT FHET FHT FAHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EF12A31HIFEE  For the year ended 31 December
WA Revenue 1,640,291 1,242,930 736,790 493,771 437,900
SHERAR Cost of sales (1,132,526) (910,734) (604,555) (403,956) (357,157)
EH Gross profit 507,765 332,196 132,235 89,315 80,743
Hip g A\ Rz Other income and gains 11,782 13472 79,341 68,057 26,568
HENTISHEER  Selling and marketing costs (69,437) (48,948) (35,242) (12,882) (12,185)
THAX Administrative expenses (57,080) (48,084) (41,687) (54,462) (38,293)
HBER Finance costs (21,441) (20,363) (16,413) (9,289) (8,997)
BRETIS BRI & A Profit before income tax 371,589 228,273 118,234 81,239 47,836
FTERAX Income tax expense (94,456) (47,984) (14,098) (17,416) (9,825)
BRI ST Discontinued operation - (11,705) (3,018) - -
FREF Profit for the year 277,133 168,584 101,118 63,823 38,011
THALELEFR Profit/(loss) for the year
HH(B51E): attributable to:
VN/NSIETFEUN Owners of the Company 230,215 130,312 96,541 72,669 43,591
RS Non-controlling interests 46,918 38,272 4577 (8,846) (5,580)
FRAF Earnings per share:
7N - basic 8.961licents  5.08fllicents  3.74flicents  3.17flicents  1.95{llicents
-5 - diluted 8.691licents  508flicents  3.74{licents  3.17flicents  1.95{licents
RI12H31H As at 31 December
BERE Total assets 2,840,222 2,363,438 2,070,412 2,061,130 1,364,887
BiERE Total liabilities (687,260) (593,924) (588,387) (725,692) (237,313)
7f EXSAA%E Total equity 2,152,962 1,769,514 1,482,025 1335438 1,127,574

6 20135 F 1R
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EZ12H31HILFE  Forthe yearended 31 December

R SR A [ 3R R Return on shareholders’ equity 1 11.6% 8.0% 6.9% 5.8% 41%
BEERRE Return on total assets 2 9.8% 7.1% 4.9% 3.1% 2.8%
B BEH Interest coverage 3 18xfZ 12xf% 8xfis 10xfZ oxfs
Ri2A31H As at 31 December
BRAFLE Gearing 4 14.0% 17.9% 19.2% 12.9% 11.5%
BN X Liquidity 5 2xf& xfE 3xfE xfE oxfE

5T notes:

1. ADREE AEGERNER, AR ERS 1. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company/Shareholders’ equity

2. FREFHRERE 2. Profit for the year/Total assets

3. BRASHEMERIATEFF SRS 3. Profit before income tax and interest expense/Interest expense

4. fBfEE fEReEE 4. Total borrowings/Total equity

5. RBEAE/RBAE 5. Current assets/Current liabilities

BEAT +32%

HK$'000,000
+69% /
+49% /
+13% —/

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

+77%

BEBTT
HK$'000,000

+67%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

18.4% 18.2% 17.9%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

T =7 Gross profit
0 &R Profit for the year

BEBT +22%
HK$'000,000

+11%

+18%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Century Sunshine” or the
“Group”), | am delighted to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the "Year”) for
shareholders’ review.

2013 was another blazing year for Century Sunshine following rapid expansions of its two principal business arms in 2011
and 2012. Mirroring its emphasis on balanced growth in terms of business scale and profitability, Century Sunshine’s overall
turnover and net profit for the Year reached new heights. As a result of the Group'’s strong financial position, the Board has
recommended a final dividend pay-out of 2 HK cents per share for shareholders’ continuous support.

Magnesium Product Business

Magnesium product business is one of the two core businesses of the Group's as well as a growth engine. As the
applications on magnesium continue to evolve, lightweight magnesium alloys have begun to deliver results matching
their vast market potentials. In January 2013, Century Sunshine acquired an additional equity interest in its subsidiary
China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology Holdings Limited. In June 2013, a subsidiary of Changchun Institute of Applied
Chemistry under Chinese Academy of Sciences, one of China’s most authoritative national researchers into magnesium
alloys was introduced as a strategic shareholder. By drawing upon research advantages inherent in new materials and rare
earth magnesium alloys, the Group is not only reinforcing its technological foundation and core competitiveness but also
empowering its magnesium business segment in the coming years.

Given its growing global importance, “Green” essentials such as energy conservation and environmental protection have
become keynotes in China's economy reform. As a vital new eco-friendly lightweight structural material for the 21st Century,
magnesium alloys are going to be widely used in many fields. As indicated in the “New Materials Industry Development Plan
for the Twelfth Five-year Period” issued by the PRC's government, demand of magnesium will grow by a CAGR of 26.5%. It
has the highest average growth rate among the ten non-ferrous metals, providing extremely encouraging hints in terms
of huge potential of magnesium alloys. Being one of the few vertically-integrated magnesium enterprises in China, the
Group remains a pacesetter in high-performance rare earth magnesium alloy field. Capitalising on its pioneering patented
technology and strengths in resources capability together with R&D development, Century Sunshine will take the market
leader advantage. In addition to diversifying the Group’s high-performance products, key objective is to lower costs in order
to cater for growing market demand and empower overall business growth.

Fertiliser Business

Ecological fertiliser is an anchor of Century Sunshine's fertilisers. The Group’s fertiliser business underwent a rapid expansion
in the Year, benefiting from policies on development of sustainable and modern agriculture towards soil testing and
formulated fertilisation advocated by the PRC's government. Its two product categories namely organic and compound
fertilisers are speciality products with specific formulas addressing different soil conditions and nutrient requirements of
crops. While providing primary nutrients for crop development, the Group's fertilisers also serve as supplements to balance
nutrients in soil and improve yield in an environmental friendly prospective. Leveraging cutting edge technology and quality
control, the Group's fertilisers have established an excellent reputation and brand awareness in the market. A competitive
strategy based on clear market positioning and product differentiation remains a key to distinguish the Group from its peers
in a fiercely competitive market yet to sustain its growth momentum.

China’s Third Plenary Session of the 18th Communist Party of China Central Committee stressed on the importance of
building an innovative corporate structure. It is indeed the 11th consecutive year in which the No. 1 Central Document 2014
has focused on rural issues. The document is related to the “three rural issues” — agriculture, rural areas and farmers. It is
underscoring the importance of rural reform, developing modern agriculture and maintaining agriculture as the foundation
of the national economy. In advancing modern agriculture with Chinese characteristics, efforts must be made to establish
new agricultural management systems with the focus on how to better utilise the land. The country must yield more high-
quality and safe farm products to satisfy its people. This is where ecological fertilisers kick in and win their market share.
Century Sunshine has been capitalising this opportunity to further accelerate its expansions. A new facility of 300,000
tonnes annual capacity will be launched in the third quarter of 2014. It will then bring its total annual production capacity
to 750,000 tonnes. On the other hand, the Group will boost its overall gross margin in the fertiliser arm through optimising
product mix, increasing production of high profit margin products together with maximising its competitive advantages.
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Outlook

The PRC's most recent economic policies has set insights on accelerating movements towards sustainable and healthy
economic development. Fully in line with the PRC's resultant industrial guidelines, Century Sunshine’s magnesium product
and fertiliser businesses are directly benefited from the new policies. In May 2013, the Group was listed in the MSCI China
Small Cap Index providing encouragement for the team to reach its new heights. Armed with full confidence for the coming
future, the Group will carry on its successful tactics of investing heavily in R&D and innovations as well as resources allocation

and utilisation to ensure a smooth process in capacity expansion and consolidation of market leading ownership. Century
Sunshine is committed to improve profitability and achieve greater returns for its shareholders.

2014 marks the 10th anniversary of Century Sunshine’s listing. | would like to express my sincere wishes and heartfelt

appreciations to our shareholders, my fellow board members, management team, colleagues and business partners for their
unremitting support in the last decade. We shall continue our expansion pace to ensure a better future for all.

Chi Wen Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

Following a robust growth in 2012, Century Sunshine achieved a record high in 2013. Total revenue of the Group in 2013
amounted to approximately HK$1,640,291,000, representing a growth of about 32.0% as compared to last year, among
which, the two principal businesses, magnesium product and fertiliser, accomplished outstanding results during the Year.
Revenue from magnesium product business reached HK$547,366,000 for 2013 (2012: HK$379,932,000). It represented 33.3%
(2012: 30.6%) of the Group's total revenue for the Year with a year-on-year growth of 44.1% over 2012. On the other hand,
revenue generated by fertiliser business stood at HK$1,028,068,000 for 2013 (2012: HK$802,464,000). It accounted for 62.7%
(2012: 64.5%) of the Group's total revenue and represented an annual growth of 28.1% comparing to 2012.

Magnesium Product Business

The Group’s magnesium product business has continued to build on its strong momentum since 2012 and once again
posted a rapid growth. High margin rare earth magnesium alloys accounted for a substantial increase in sales contribution
which fuelled the overall high growth of the Group.

The Group's magnesium product business covers two categories — basic magnesium products and rare earth magnesium
alloys. The latter includes high-performance rare earth magnesium alloys and rare earth magnesium middle alloys. Given
their advanced technological requirements and superb performance on applications, pricings and margins of rare earth
magnesium alloys are comparatively higher than basic magnesium products. During the Year, sales volume of rare
earth magnesium alloys soared to 8,434 tonnes (2012: 5,010 tonnes), contributing revenue of HK$358,975,000 (2012:
HK$196,317,000) which accounted for 65.6% (2012: 51.7%) of overall segment revenue with a gross profit margin of 40.0%
(2012: 39.4%). Whereas basic magnesium products including magnesium ingots and general magnesium alloys recorded
sales volume of 8,463 tonnes (2012: 7,897 tonnes) which generated revenue of HK$166,162,000 (2012: HK$167,634,000). They
accounted for 30.4% (2012: 44.1%) of segment revenue with a gross margin of 16.8% (2012: 24.6%).

Due to the downturn in global commodity market, basic magnesium products experienced fluctuations in both prices and
gross profit margins in the Year. However, rare earth magnesium products entail sophisticated technological requirements
which ensured a relatively stable gross profit margin in comparison to basic magnesium products. It also demonstrates
effectiveness of the Group's strategy in developing high-performance products.

The Group has obtained 21 patented technologies for production of high-performance rare earth magnesium alloys which
ensuring its leading position in this space. In June 2013, a subsidiary of Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry under
Chinese Academy of Sciences, one of the most respectful and authoritative institutions engaged in researching rare earth
magnesium alloys, was introduced as a strategic shareholder to the Group. The move has further bolstered the Group’s R&D
capabilities and technical strengths. Also, the Group has been enlisted as a Demonstration Base for Applications of Mining
Resources by the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC since 2011. The Group's market
leader position has long been set.

China’s magnesium ingot production was at a 11.7% CAGR growth rate from 2009 to 2012. The distinct market surge
was fuelled by increasing competitiveness of magnesium alloys, resulting from incentivised global move towards a more
environmentally-friendly and energy-saving demand in material. To ensure the business grows in the same pace as the
global demand, Century Sunshine has been pushing its Phase Il expansion to create an additional annual capacity of 50,000
tonnes of magnesium. The enhanced capacity will provide the Group an ideal platform to capture the rapid growing market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fertiliser Business

Under the national support on ecological, green and sustainable agricultural development, the Group’s fertiliser business
maintained a substantial growth in the Year. Despite an increasingly challenging business environment for straight fertiliser
producers, Century Sunshine’s fertilisers out-performed its peers listed in Hong Kong. Both sales and gross margins hit
record high. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the segment contributed a total revenue of HK$1,028,068,000 (2012:
HK$802,464,000) representing an annual increase of 28.1%. The business covers two product categories — compound and
organic fertilisers. During the Year, revenue of compound and organic fertilisers increased year-on-year to 22.1% and 57.9%
respectively.

The gross profit margin of compound fertilisers experienced a substantial increase from 17.9% to 22.0% in the Year.
The sizeable jump was a result of production upgrade and efficiency improvement following its ongoing technological
innovation and enhancement.

Although launched in March 2012, compound Silicon Magnesium (“Si-Mg") fertilisers continued to drive a remarkable growth
in revenue and gross profit for overall fertiliser business during the Year. While experiencing a rapid growth in its production
and sales, it still managed to maintain a high margin. It was achieved by fine-tuning product mix and improving production
efficiency. Revenue amounted to HK$207,260,000 (2012: HK$122,238,000), representing 20.2% of the fertiliser business in the
Year.

In 2013, the Group underwent a series of technical improvements to further maximise and recycle waste materials in
producing organic fertilisers. The move successfully reduced cost of production which enhanced overall gross margin.
During the Year, sales of organic fertilisers increased by 48.7% to 128,292 tonnes. Recorded revenue of HK$275,468,000 (2012:
HK$174,452,000), representing approximately 26.8% of the fertiliser business. Gross profit margin went from 35.5% to 37.9%.

Through continuous investment in research and development, the Group has translated the efforts in technological advance
and outstanding performance to its products. It has increased entry barrier for competitors yet maintained the Group's
competitiveness in securing a high profit margin business in an intensifying market situation. Given its strategic focus on
product innovation and differentiation, the Group continues to draw upon its strengths inherent in proprietary technologies
to further increase market share in the future.

Phase | expansion, a new plant with a 300,000-tonne annual capacity will be launched in the third quarter of 2014. Phase ||
expansion of a 400,000-tonne production is already on drawing board. It will advance growth of the fertiliser business of the
Group.

Other Business

Metallurgical flux business is the Group's secondary business. With an abundant, superb quality serpentine reserve, it is not
only a key raw material to produce Si-Mg fertilisers but also an indispensable source of auxiliary material for iron and steel
smelting. Based on principle of securing source of material for Si-Mg fertilisers production, the Group sold a manageable
amount of serpentine reserve to large domestic steel enterprises. During the Year, revenue from the metallurgical flux
business amounted to HK$64,857,000 (2012: HK$60,534,000), representing 4.0% (2012: 4.9%) of the total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

Comprised of magnesium product and fertiliser, Century Sunshine’s dual-business portfolio is gradually entering in a growth
stage. Both businesses are aligning with objectives of the PRC's economic reform. It has clearly indicated that the Group will
be benefitted from the favourable national policy in a long term.

The Group’s commitment to research and technological investments represents its leadership in rare earth magnesium
alloys and ecological fertilisers. The advanced technology has created a substantial hurdle for market players to replicate and
compete.

Looking forward to 2014, Century Sunshine expects that value chain of both businesses will grow stronger and become
more sophisticated. Its development will be coupled with broader sales outreach and higher market awareness. The Group
believes it will be advantageously positioned by the national policies emphasising ‘Green’ issues such as environmental
protection, energy saving and economic sustainability from a macro prospective. The management remains optimistic about
maintaining a high growth in 2014. Leveraging on its well-established strategies and development plans, the management
will make every possible effort to expand market share by increasing the portion of high-margin products in its portfolio and
launching new products. The ultimate goal is to maximise shareholders’ value.

Key Operational Data

Unaudited key operational data for the year ended 31 December 2013, together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2012, is as follows. Main businesses listed below contributed over 95% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

(@) Sales volume of major products:

Year Increased/
2013 2012 (Decreased)
Tonnes Tonnes %
Magnesium product business
Rare earth magnesium alloys 8,434 5,010 68.3
Basic magnesium products 8,463 7,897 7.2
Fertiliser business
Compound fertilisers 290,952 221,864 31.1
Organic fertilisers 128,292 86,304 48.7
(b) Average selling prices of major products:
Year Increased/
2013 2012 (Decreased)
per tonne per tonne %
HK$ HKS
Magnesium product business
Rare earth magnesium alloys 42,563 39,184 8.6
Basic magnesium products 19,634 21,228 (7.5
Fertiliser business
Compound fertilisers 2,577 2,769 (6.9)
Organic fertilisers 2,147 2,021 6.2
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Key Operational Data (Continued)
(c)  Gross profit margins of major products:

Year Increased/
2013 2012 (Decreased)
% % Basis points

Magnesium product business
Rare earth magnesium alloys 40.0 394 06
Basic magnesium products 16.8 24.6 (7.8)

Fertiliser business

Compound fertilisers 22.0 17.9 4.1
Organic fertilisers 37.9 355 24
The Group's gross profit margin 31.0 26.7 43

Revenue

Total revenue of the Group in 2013 amounted to approximately HK$1,640,291,000 (2012: approximately HK$1,242,930,000),
representing a growth of about 32.0%. This is mainly due to expansion of production capacity, improvement in production
efficiency and increase in sale volume.

For production capacity, the Group has renovated its production lines, thus expanded the production capacity for fertilisers
by around 18.4%. For sales, the Group has expanded its distribution networks and customers base, thereby increased the
sales volume for compound fertilisers and organic fertilisers by 31.1% and 48.7% respectively, among which, sales volume of
high gross margin products, Si-Mg fertiliser, raised by 68.3%. Sales volume for magnesium product business also recorded
a growth of 30.9%. Among which, sales volume of rare earth magnesium alloys recorded a significant growth of 68.3%, and
accounting to 49.9% of total quantity sold of the magnesium product business.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for 2013 amounted to approximately HK$1,132,526,000 (2012: HK$910,734,000), an increase of around 24.4%
over last year. Among which, approximately 31.5%, 66.9% and 1.6% are attributable to magnesium product business, fertiliser
business and metallurgical flux business respectively (2012: approximately 27.7%, 69.6% and 2.7% respectively). Cost of sales
mainly comprised of material cost and utilities cost, that accounted for approximately 87.5% of total cost of sales.

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit for 2013 was approximately HK$507,765,000 (2012: HK$332,196,000), surged by approximately
52.9%. The consolidated gross profit margin raised from 26.7% to approximately 31.0%. This is mainly due to the change and
improvement in product mix, increasing sales proportion of high profit margin rare earth magnesium alloys and the Si-Mg
fertilisers, thereby enhancing the Group's overall gross profit ratio.

Selling and Marketing Costs

Selling and marketing costs were approximately HK$69,437,000 (2012: HK$48,948,000), which mainly comprised of
transportation costs of approximately 69.2 % and salaries and commission of approximately 18.9% (2012: approximately
67.0% and 25.7% respectively). Selling and marketing cost accounted for approximately 4.2 % (2012: approximately 3.9%) of
total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses was approximately HK$55,767,000 (2012: HK$48,084,000), which mainly comprised of staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, audit and professional fees and occupancy costs, accounting for approximately
39.6%, 24.4%, 6.1% and 4.1% (2012: approximately 35.1%, 18.6%, 6.3% and 3.3%) respectively of the total administrative
expenses for the year.

Increase in administrative expenses was mainly resulted from expenses incurred for coping with expansion of our businesses,
yet, the Group was still able to minimise such expenses as it only represented approximately 3.4% (2012: approximately 3.9%)
of total revenue.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains amounted to approximately HKS$11,782,000 (2012: HK$12,015,000), mainly comprised of interest
income and rental income accounting to approximately HK$5,157,000 and HK$5,241,000 (2012: approximately HKS$6,104,000
and HK$4,633,000) respectively.

Margin

Profit for the year amounted to approximately HK$277,133,000 (2012: HK$168,584,000), leaped by approximately 64.4%.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year amounted to HK$230,215,000 (2012: HK$130,312,000), increased by
approximately 76.7 %.

Liquidity, Liabilities and Financial Resources
The Group's liquidity in 2013 was mainly derived from cash generated from business operations. As at 31 December 2013,
total amount of cash and bank balances of the Group was approximately HK$422,901,000 (2012:HK$503,194,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's total borrowings decreased by approximately 5.1% as compared to 2012, while
net current assets increased by approximately 47.9% as compared to 2012. The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total
borrowings over total equity) was approximately 14.0% in 2013 (2012: 17.9%).

The Group's existing cash resources together with the steady cash flows generated from business activities are sufficient to
meet its business needs. Net cash generated from operating activities amounted to HK$297,905,000 (2012: HKS $252,538,000).

Exchange Rate Risk Management

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from primarily with respect to HKS, Renminbi and Australian dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group's
management does not expect the net foreign currency risk from these activities to be significant and hence, the Group does
not presently hedge the foreign exchange risks. The Group periodically reviews liquid assets and liabilities held in currencies
other than HK$ to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and consider the usage of hedging instruments when
necessary.
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Credit Risk Management

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk exposure of our customers. The Group strictly followed the “client
account management procedures” established in 2004. The procedures required and ensured that all clients were regularly
assessed and be kept track of their transaction records and credit history. The Group specified and assigned to each
customer, as according to their operation and credit status, a series of credit measures such as credit ratio, credit period,
credit rating, credit terms and guarantee. The client account management procedures were effective to control the credit
risk of the Group.

Significant Transactions

In January 2013, the Group, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Capital Idea Investments Limited acquired additional equity
interest in China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology Holdings Limited (“China Rare Earth Magnesium”) which had enlarged
its share capital in June 2013 to introduce new technological and strategic shareholders. The Group’s net equity interest in
China Rare Earth Magnesium was therefore increased by 21.6%.

On 28 January 2014, the Company and International Finance Corporation (“IFC") entered into a Share Subscription
Agreement, pursuant to which, IFC has agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 155,077,000 fully paid Subscription Shares at
HK$0.75 each. The relevant Subscription was completed on 24 February 2014.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had pledge of its assets, details of which are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial
statements.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2013, other than those disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements, the Group did not have any
material capital commitments.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2013, other than those disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Capital Structure
As at 31 December 2013, the issued share capital of the Company were HK$52,013,417, divided into 2,600,670,868 Shares of
HKS0.02 each.

Human Resources

The number of employees of the Group was approximately 1,250 (2012: 910) as at 31 December 2013. The remuneration
of employees was determined by the Group with reference to their performance, work experience and current market
conditions. Employee benefits include medical insurance, defined provident fund scheme, discretionary bonus and employee
share option scheme. There has been no labour dispute or significant change in the number of employees that affect the
normal operations of the Group. The Directors believe that the Group maintains admirable relations with its employees.
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Project Overview

Dolomite Mine

The Group's dolomite mine is situated in Baishan City, Jilin Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by open-pit method.
During the year, there was no exploration activities, but development and mining production activities.

Up to 31 December 2013, the Group completed a dolomite output of 315,236 tonnes (2012: 239,385 tonnes). As compared
with the state as at 31 December 2012, there was no material change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the
dolomite mine.

The expenditure incurred in development and mining production activities of dolomite for the year ended 31 December
2013 were approximately HK$100,451,000 and HK$16,529,000 respectively (2012: approximately HKSNil and HK$11,738,000
respectively) while the expenditure incurred in exploration was HKSNil (2012: HKSNil).

Serpentine Mine
The Group's serpentine mine is situated in Donghai County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by open-pit
method. During the year, there was no exploration activities, but development and mining production activities.

Up to 31 December 2013, the Group completed a serpentine output of 543,526 tonnes (2012: 512,252 tonnes). As compared
with the state as at 31 December 2012, there was no material change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the
serpentine mine.

The expenditure incurred in development and mining production activities of serpentine for the year ended 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$44,841,000 and HK$17,173,000 respectively (2012: approximately HKSNil and HKS$17,176,000
respectively) while the expenditure incurred in exploration was HKSNil (2012: HKSNil).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Executive Directors

CHI Wen Fu, aged 51, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group who is responsible for overall strategic planning
and key operating decisions. Mr. Chi started his law firm in Fuzhou in 1995, in which he was the Managing Partner. Prior to
that, Mr. Chi joined Fuzhou Justice Bureau Commerce Law Office after qualifying as a lawyer in the PRC in 1989. In early 1998,
Mr. Chi originated an initial research on organic agricultural production and funded a R&D project on microbial compound
fertilisers. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Chemical Analysis and Law. Mr. Chi established the Group in 2000.

SHUM Sai Chit, aged 56, Chief Operation Officer of the Group who is responsible for business operations. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director of Go Modern Limited which was principally engaged in manufacturing of
textile products and trading activities. In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fujian Textiles Import and Export Corporation as a Manager
to oversee importing and exporting of textile products. Mr. Shum is a graduate of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics.
Mr. Shum has joined the Group since January 2002.

CHI Bi Fen, aged 55, Vice-President of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy General Manager of an
electronics equipment company over 17 years. She has an extensive experience in accounting, taxation and finance in the
PRC for more than 15 years. She is a graduate of Accounting and Finance. Ms. Chi has joined the Group since March 2000.

YANG Yuchuan, aged 49, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the People’s Republic of China with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in 1985. In 1993, Mr. Yang obtained a master's degree of business administration from McLaren
School of Business, University of San Francisco in the United States of America. Mr. Yang used to manage and operate
former subsidiaries of the Group, Partners Capital Securities Limited and Sunshine Asset Management (HK) Limited, and is
very experienced in financial industry. Mr. Yang has been a non-executive director of TTG Mobile Coupon Services Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: TUP) since December 2011.

Non-Executive Director

GUO Mengyong, aged 55, has been the Deputy General Manager of Fujian Wireless Group Company since 2000. He is
responsible for quality management. Fujian Wireless Group is principally engaged in the production of electronic parts
and components for meters and electronic equipments. Prior to that, he worked at Fuzhou Meters Group Company as an
Engineer in 1993 and later promoted to the Deputy Factory Manager in 1996, in charging of technical quality control. In
1976, he joined Fuzhou Capacitors Factory as a Technician. He is a graduate of Industrial Enterprise Management. Mr. Guo
has joined the Group since February 2011.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

KWONG Ping Man, aged 49, Director of O'Park Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate advisory services. Prior
to joining the Group, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of various companies for almost 7 years. Mr. Kwong has over
15 years of experience in accounting, finance and administration. He obtained a Master's Degree in Professional Accounting
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of CPA Australia, fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr. Kwong is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1181).

LIU Hoi Keung, aged 49, Executive Director of Genvon Group Limited (Stock Code: 2389). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu
had been the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of a listed company on main board in Hong Kong. Mr. Liu has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing, finance, and management. He received a Master of Science Degree in
Electronic Commerce and Internet Computing from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Liu is an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

SHENG Hong, aged 51, Director of Hadrian Manufacturing (Asia) Limited and Director of Operations and General Manager
of Hadrian (Shanghai) Trading Limited. The Hadrian Group is principally engaged in production and sales of metal partitions
and lockers. Mr. Sheng has over 20 years of experience in management of corporation and investment. He was employed
by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited from 1986 to 1996. Mr. Sheng holds a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering
Mechanics from Tongji University, Shanghai.
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Company Secretary

LUK Sai Wai, Simon, aged 50, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Luk is responsible for
financial, management accounting and secretarial affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luk was appointed
as financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in finance and
management. Mr. Luk holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from University of Strathclyde. He is a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of Society of
Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong. Mr. Luk joined the Group in May 2010.

Panel of Senior Consultants

Panel of Senior Consultants (the “Panel”) of the Group has strong technical background and expertise in magnesium alloy
smelting and research and development in new materials. The appointment of the Panel is to provide the Group with solid
technical and resources measure for the development of Magnesium Product Business. Members’ remunerations of the Panel
are based on the nature and scope of consultancy services provided. There is no fixed remuneration arrangement between
the Group and the Panel.

ZHANG Hongjie, aged 60, Scientific Technology Consultant of the Group. He is a Researcher of Changchun Institute of
Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences (the “Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry”) and a tutor of PhD
students. He was honoured the Outstanding Young Scholar Award of National Outstanding Youth Fund and Hong Kong Qiu
Shi Fund. He was also awarded as the Expert with Outstanding Contributions in Jilin Province. Mr. Zhang has been engaging
in research and development for rare earth alloys and new materials. He is the Deputy Chief Scientist of National Rare
Earth Fundamental Research. He is also Officers of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, and Rare Earth
Luminescent Professional Committee of Rare Earth Society. He holds a Master’s Degree in Science from Changchun Institute
of Applied Chemistry. He is undertaking a PhD at National Scientific Research Centre, University of Bordeaux, France.

MENG lJian, aged 57, Rare Earth Magnesium Alloy Consultant of the Group. He has been appointed as the Professor and the
Deputy Officer of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry. He is
the Deputy Officer of Solid and New Materials Professional Committee of Chinese Society of Rare Earth. He is also Executives
of Chinese Society of Nonferrous Metals, and Institute of Metals in Jilin Province. Mr. Meng has been engaging in research
and development of rare earth magnesium alloys and new materials. He is an expert in China-US magnesium collaborations.
He has contributed substantially to the development and application of rare earth magnesium alloys. Mr. Meng majored in
semiconducting from Jilin University, and holds a Master's Degree from Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry. He holds
a PhD from Toyohashi University of Technology, Japan.
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Senior Management

CHENG King Sang, aged 61, is responsible for the Magnesium Product Business of the Group. Mr. Cheng was appointed as
the Representative of the Municipal People Congress of Baishan City in Jilin Province for a period of five years, between 2007
and 2012. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years of experience in corporate management. Mr. Cheng joined Top Eminent Industrial
Limited as a Director in Hong Kong from 1989 to 1993. He was the Chairman of Fujian Top Eminent General Electrical
Company Limited since 1999. He is a graduate of Corporate Management. Mr. Cheng has joined the Group since 2008.

DU Qingzhi, aged 51, is responsible for the Magnesium Product Business of the Group. Mr. Du majored in metal metallurgy
with over 30 years of experience in metallurgy and magnesium industries. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Supervisor
of a magnesium factory in Hau Shan, the Factory-in-Charge of Lin Jiang Magnesium Holdings Limited, and the Production
Manager of German Stolfig Group — Automobile Parts and Components. Mr. Du joined the Group in 2008.

ZHOU lJianhui, aged 41, is responsible for the Fertiliser Business of the Group. Mr. Zhou majored in agriculture with over
20 years of experience in mining and agricultural fertilisers industries. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Technician at
Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, the Deputy Manager of Jiangsu Le He He Fertiliser Company Limited, and the
Factory-in-Charge of Fertiliser of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 2007.

WANG Yongxiang, aged 45, Senior Engineer of the Group. Mr. Wang majored in planning and surveying of mining industry
with over 20 years of experience in planning and mining. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Production Technician and
Engineer at Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, and the Factory-in-Charge of Sulfuric Acid of Jiangsu Longteng
Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2007.

HON Sze Wan, Noelle, aged 41, Vice-President — Investor Relations of the Group who is responsible for financial
communications and investor relations strategy. Miss Hon has over 10 years of experience in marketing, corporate
development and communications, investor relations, media management, event coordination and online development.
Prior to joining the Group, she held various senior management positions with listed companies in Hong Kong and the
United States. She holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Australian Graduate School of Management,
University of New South Whales. Miss Hon joined the Group in December 2011.

ZHANG Ren Sheng, aged 44, Director of Corporation Management of the Group who is responsible for corporate
management and planning. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in corporate management and business planning. He
holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration from School of Business of Wuhan University. Mr. Zhang joined the Group
in July 2008.

CHI Jing Chao, aged 31, Chief Corporate Affairs Officer of the Group who is responsible for the overall corporate activities.
Mr. Chi worked in various subsidiaries of the Group and has 10 years of experience in corporate affairs. Mr. Chi is a graduate
of Administrative Management from College of Adult Education, Xiamen University. Mr. Chi joined the Group in August 2004.
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The Company is committed to achieve and maintain high standards
of corporate governance and business integrity. The Board believes
that good corporate governance will not only improve management
accountability and investors confidence, but will lay a good foundation
for the long-term development of the Company.

Throughout the year of 2013, the Company has complied with the code
provision as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
and Corporate Governance Report under Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), with the following deviations:

(a)

Under code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (the "CEQ") should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, there is no
separation between the roles of chairman and CEO under the
current corporate structure of the Company, details of which
have been disclosed in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
CEQ” below.

Under code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Chi Wen Fu, the chairman
of the Board was unable to attend the annual general meeting
held on 8 May 2013 as he was obliged to be away for a business
trip. Mr. Shum Sai Chit, Director of the Company, attended
the said annual general meeting to respond to queries from
shareholders.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should also attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Guo Mengyong (being a non-executive Director)
and Mr. Sheng Hong (being an independent non-executive
Director) were unable to attend the annual general meeting held
on 8 May 2013 as they were obliged to be away for business trips.
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The Board

The Group is governed by the Board which is responsible for strategic
leadership and overall supervision of the Group. The Board exercises a
number of authorities which include:

- Formulating the Group's overall strategies

- Monitoring and controlling operational and financial performance
- Formulating strategies for risk management

- Reviewing effectiveness of internal control system

- Approving financial results and public announcements

- Approving annual operating budgets

- Approving major acquisitions or disposals and capital projects
- Authorising major investments and material borrowings

- Setting dividend policy

- Approving appointment of Directors

- Setting the Group'’s remuneration policies

The Board is also responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision D.3.1. The Board will meet to develop, review and monitor the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, to review and
monitor training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors and to review the
compliance of the Company and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

During the year of 2013, in relation to the corporate governance
functions, the Board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and the regulatory and statutory requirements, and the
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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The Board (Continued)

Chairman and CEO

Chi Wen Fu, founder of the Group, currently holds a dual role as the
Chairman and the CEO. This structure does not comply with code
provision A.2.1. However, the Board is of the view that it is in the best
interests of the Group to adopt a single leadership structure, as Mr. Chi
possesses extensive experience and knowledge in the PRC market and
he is playing a significant role in establishing strategic decisions and
overall management of the Group. It enables the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently. Further, it is difficult for
the Board to find a candidate with suitable qualification and expertise
in the market to fill the position of CEO at this stage. With the single
leadership structure, sufficient safeguards are established to ensure the
management is accountable to the Board. The Chairman/CEO ensures
Board meetings are held regularly and when necessary. The Chairman/
CEO ensures that Board members are provided with complete, adequate,
accurate and timely information on a regular basis to enable them to be
fully cognisant of the affairs of the Group. The Chairman/CEO ensures all
Directors have unrestricted access to document or information kept by
the Group and professional advice when necessary.

During 2013, the Chairman had met the non-executive Director and
the independent non-executive Directors respectively and individually
without the presence of other executive Directors.

Board Composition

The Board comprises 8 Directors in which 4 are executive Directors; 1 is
non-executive Director and 3 are independent non-executive Directors.
The number of independent non-executive Directors constitutes more
than one-third of the Board. The composition of the Board as at the date
of this report and their profiles are set out on page 4 and page 29 of this
annual report respectively.

The Board delegates powers to executive Directors for the day-to-day
management of the Group and the implementation of major strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board whereas executive Directors
should provide such explanations and information to the Board in a
timely manner to enable the Board to monitor the performance of
management.

Non-executive Directors from diverse backgrounds bring in valuable
expertise and experience to the Company and serve important functions
as well as provide strategic advices to the management.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors ensure that the Board is
accountable for the interest of all shareholders and handles matters in
an objective manner. The 3 independent non-executive Directors have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery
of the Board functions. The Board has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Ms. Chi Bi Fen have a family relationship of brother
and sister. Mr. Guo Mengyong is a brother-in-law of Mr. Chi Wen Fu. Save
as disclosed, there is no other relationship among members of the Board.

Upon reviewing (i) the directorships and major commitments of each
Director; and (ii) the attendance rate of each Director at the meetings of
the Board and its committees, the Board is satisfied that all Directors have
spent sufficient time in performing their responsibilities during 2013.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against Directors.

Appointment and Re-election

Any potential new Directors, being individuals who are suitably qualified
and expected to make a positive contribution to the performance of the
Board, will be identified by the existing Directors and the Nomination
Committee and submitted to the Board for approval.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation and every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every 3 years. Mr. Shum Sai Chit, Ms. Chi Bi Fen, Mr. Kwong
Ping Man, Mr. Liu Hoi Keung and Mr. Yang Yuchuan (being a Director
appointed by the Board after the preceding general meeting of the
Company) shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, but being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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The Board (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election (Continued)

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr. Kwong Ping Man, Mr. Liu Hoi
Keung and Mr. Sheng Hong, has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of 2 years commencing from 1
February 2013, 1 January 2013, 1 January 2013 and 24 September 2012
respectively, subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the articles of association of the Company and save that
either party or the Company may terminate the appointment by giving at
least 3 months' prior written notice. Annual emoluments to independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Director will be reviewed
according to their estimated time to be spent on the Company’s matters
and their working experience with the Company:

All existing executive Directors are entitled to a fixed salary per annum
respectively. In addition, each executive Director is also entitled to
a discretionary management bonus calculated as a percentage of
the audited consolidated net profit of the Group attributable to the
Shareholders (after tax and minority interests and the payment of such
management bonuses but before extraordinary and exceptional items),
which percentage shall be determined by the Board provided that the
aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to all executive Directors in
respect of each financial year of the Company shall not exceed 5% of
such net profit. The remuneration of each executive Director is subject to
the annual review of the Board with reference to his/her contribution in
terms of time, effort and his/her expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors and senior
management during the year are disclosed in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses
incurred during the performance of their duties to the Company and
are eligible for share options under the share option scheme of the
Company.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Processes

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and leads the Group in an
ethical, responsible and effective manner. The Board meets on a regular
basis and arranges ad-hoc meetings for any specific matters that may
arise.

The Board met 4 times in 2013. The attendance of individual Directors at

FIEENFEEEEH  TEZLHNMIRE  meetings of the Board, its committees and members general meeting is
KNG 2Ok - set out in the following table:
frtiE/ BT 88
Attended/held
EZeeE ENZEg8E REZEEEE FMzZEeed BREAE
Audit Nomination Remuneration Members
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
HiTE=E Executive Directors
HXE Chi Wen Fu 3/4 - 22 - 0/1
g3 Shum Sai Chit 474 - - 12 11
B Chi BiFen 3/4 - - - o/
BEI Yang Yuchuan' 2”2 - - - -
FHTES Non-Executive Director
PERE Guo Mengyong 4/4 - - 0/1
BUEHTES Independent Non-Executive
Directors
B Kwong Ping Man 4/4 4/4 " " 11
BF® Liu Hoi Keung 24 24 - W) 11
RS Sheng Hong 4/4 4/4 1 1 0/1
1 MR2013E7 A1 BEERT L Appointed on 1 July 2013
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XA TE2EES IR TFTRI=K
HEEEN EFSEARET TR LUK
ZRAFAKASEIRFRIELIRT o WE
ZRFENEERNEETSEEEERBBER
ZEEFREN=ER BEEEBAEEE
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NEIE -

ESENEFZBQERMBEHARAZA
AWERE  EREAMIEXS  AHAA
ESEH - RCBHAEFSLAHRZRE S
Fratam =18  FTERERBEFRHOAEMR
BTREE -

Agendas and the accompanying board papers are circulated in full to all
Directors at least 3 days before the Board or committee meeting. Board
decisions will then be resolved either by vote at Board meetings or by
written resolutions. If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution.

Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of the Board committees
taken by the company secretary of the Company and, together with
any supporting papers, are available for inspection to all Directors. The
minutes record the matters discussed by the Board or its committees,
the decisions made and any concerns or dissenting views raised by the
Directors.
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The Board (Continued)

Board Processes (Continued)

If a Director has a conflict of interests in relation to a transaction or
proposal to be considered by the Board, such Director is required to
declare his/her interest and abstain from voting. Such matter shall
be considered at a Board meeting by Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction or proposal.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s business and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. The Group also regularly
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements regarding
subjects necessary in the discharge of their duties. In addition, the
Company has been encouraging Directors to attend seminars on the
latest development of applicable laws, rules and regulations so that they
can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills.

According to the records provided by the Directors, the training received
by each of the Directors during the period from 1 January 2013 up to 31
December 2013 is summarized as follows:-

Type of continuous
professional development
Directors training "t

Executive Directors

Chi Wen Fu B
Shum Sai Chit B
Chi Bi Fen B
Yang Yuchuan B
Non-Executive Director

Guo Mengyong B
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwong Ping Man A and B
Liu Hoi Keung A and B
Sheng Hong A and B
notes:

A Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the Company’s business or

directors’ duties and responsibilities, the latest development of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements etc.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group to the senior management who is required
to report back to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board and the
management are reviewed periodically. The Board and each individual
Director is empowered to access any Company’s information from senior
management and the company secretary at all times. The Directors
are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect
the Group’s businesses, including amendments on relevant rules and
regulations. During the year, Directors are provided with monthly updates
on the Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Directors
are allowed to seek independent professional advice in performing their
Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense, but no request was made by
any Director for such independent professional advice in 2013.

The Board monitors and reviews performance of the management based
on several key performance indicators such as financial figures, investor
relations, corporate governance and internal control. The principal
measures include review of management accounts, review of internal or
external auditor reports and feedbacks from stakeholders.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective
on 1 September 2013. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and
ethnicity, in addition to educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 8 Directors. Among
which, one of them is a woman, one of them is non-executive Director
and three of them are independent non-executive Directors. The
Directors are of diverse educational background and possess a wide
spectrum of professional qualifications and business experience. The
Board is of significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
professional and educational background and skills.
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Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (“Model Code”) as the code of conduct of the Company regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. The Company made specific enquiries
to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed in writing that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during
the year.

Board’s Committees

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), and nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). These committees function within clearly defined terms of
reference. Independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in
these committees to ensure that independent and objective views are
taken.

The terms of reference of these committees are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

All the members of the Audit Committee are independent non-executive
Directors. All committee members possess appropriate qualifications
such as accounting and financial management. The Audit Committee
members are set out in page 4 of the annual report.

The Audit Committee met 4 times in 2013 to review with the senior
management and external auditors the Group’s significant internal
controls and financial matters as set out in the Audit Committee’s
terms of reference. The functions of the Audit Committee included the
following matters:

- Reviewing the Group's financial statements with recommendation
to the Board for approval

- Reviewing the Group’s compliance of the regulatory and statutory
requirements

- Reviewing the Group’s internal control and risk management

- Reviewing significant accounting and audit issues

= Reviewing the Group's connected transactions

- Overseeing and managing the relationship with external auditors

The Audit Committee has power to conduct investigations into any
matter within the scope of responsibility of the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is authorised to obtain independent professional
advice if it deems necessary in the discharge of its responsibilities. The
Audit Committee has obtained a written confirmation from the auditors
on their independence and objectivity as required under the Section
290 (revised) of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants prior to the
commencement of the audit of the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has carried out the above
functions in the respective Audit Committee meetings and also has
been satisfied with the review of the audit scope, process, effectiveness
and independence of the auditors. The Audit Committee has reviewed
and recommended to the Board for approval of the interim and annual
financial statements for 2013. There was no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee members are set out in page 4 of the annual
report.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate
transparent procedures for setting remuneration policies and packages
for Directors and the senior management of the Group. Its duties include:

- Reviewing and recommending to the Board the remuneration
packages of individual executive and non-executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group

- Reviewing the administration of the share option scheme of the
Company

= Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for Directors and
the senior management of the Group

No Director is involved in determining his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee met 2 times in 2013 to review the existing
remuneration policies of the Directors and senior management and
consider the remuneration package of Mr. Yang Yuchuan as an executive
Director.
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REZES Nomination Committee
REZESRBIUKEAK - KELAEZIE  The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 members, the majority
WITEFERZH - RBZEGHEEIIR  of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination

REFRFE4E © Committee members are out in page 4 of the annual report.

REZEENEERE Its duties include:

= W EEE 2EE - ASRAEK = Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board

- BEUEFSELENEYSUEEER - Recommending any proposed change to the Board to
NAEIM R complement the Company’s corporate strategies

- MeEBRIREERABLEESE - Identifying capable and qualified individuals to become Board
IB4=! members

= BN FERITE S 2B = Assessing independence of independent non-executive Directors

= ERETRETZIEERESET - Recommending appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
ZHE succession planning for Directors

REZEEN2013FHBFA2REHE - MEES  The Nomination Committee met 2 times in 2013 for reviewing the

BB ABURANK - WEFEZESE  structure, size and composition of the Board, making recommendation to

REERITZIRRBAFRSENLZAEEHEE  the Board in the re-appointment of retiring Directors at the forthcoming

£ BARNTZELIENTES 2BILERZE  annual general meeting, assessing the independence of independent

BRREGENEEIEREEHEEA © non-executive Directors and considering nomination of Mr. Yang
Yuchuan as a candidate for directorship.

REIVEEEEBARAREEEXNEZB  In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
BN REZEGBRHSEREEFENES candidates to become members of the Board, the Nomination
TALBUR - Committee will give adequate consideration to the board diversity policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company had appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as
the auditors of the Group. The Board was also authorised in the annual
general meeting to determine the remuneration of the auditors. During
the year, the auditors performed the work of statutory audit for the year
of 2013.

The following principles are considered when determining the
appointment of the auditors in non-audit services:

- No management decision made by the auditors
- Independence of the auditors not to be impaired
- Quality of service

- Cost of service

The remuneration of the auditors for the year of 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:

2013 2012
BT BIT
HKS$ HKS

HESMEKFEMR2AT  HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
ERZRIE Audit services 1,024,000 1,350,000
IEEZPRTE Non-audit services - 121,000

AERZRBHBEESTMEBHAERAA
Bz REHBERASETZRRBFEFAE
LEW - BEREZEGERNEFEREE  NAE
RANBRITZRRBFAE LHREZER
BEtMEEABRAR RN T ZZRED o

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be reappointed as the auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries and
in compliance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules.

The auditors acknowledge their responsibilities in the auditors’ report as
set out on pages 57 and 58 of this annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review the effectiveness of the Group'’s system of internal controls with a
view to ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the Group's assets
are safeguarded. This responsibility is primarily fulfilled on its behalf by
the Audit Committee. In the year under review, the Audit Committee, as
delegated by the Board, has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

The foundation of a strong system of internal control is a solid control
environment. This is dependent on the following components:

- Business ethics and culture of the organisation
- Quality and competence of its personnel

- Direction provided by the Board, and

- Effectiveness of the management

Risk Management

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review and
taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. The
management of the Company reviews all significant control policies and
procedures and highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit
Committee.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Company recognises the importance of open communication and
fair disclosure. It is the Company’s policy to ensure that all shareholders
are equally informed of all major corporate developments.

All shareholders have proper notice of any general meeting of the
Company at which the Directors and the committees’ members are
available to give explanation on any query raised by the shareholders.
Major information of the Company could be obtained from the
Company’s website or financial reports and circulars sent to the
shareholders. Any enquiries by the shareholders requiring the Board's
attention can also be sent in writing to the Vice-President-Investor
Relations of the Company whose contact details are set out in the
paragraph headed “Shareholders’ rights — (c) Right to put enquiries to the
Board"” below.
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Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations (Continued)

Resolutions put to the vote at the general meetings of the Company
shall be decided on a poll, save that the chairman of the meeting may
in good faith allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. Procedures
for conducting a poll will be explained to the shareholders at each
general meeting and questions from shareholders regarding the voting
procedures will be answered. The poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively in the
manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.

As part of a regular program of investor relations, senior executives
may hold briefings or road shows after the results announcement and
attend conferences with institutional investors and analysts to engage
in two-way communications on Company’s performance, objectives and
developments. Company visits can be arranged upon specific request.

Shareholders’ Rights

(a) Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company's head office
and principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 2605, 26th
Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
and such request may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of the requisitionist(s).

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon the confirmation of the branch
share registrar that the request is in order, the company secretary
of the Company will ask the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements to all
registered members. On the contrary, if the request is verified as
not in order, the requisitionist(s) will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, an extraordinary general meeting will not be
convened as requested.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Right to Convene Extraordinary General Meeting
(Continued)

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionst(s) himself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting following
the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regard the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
website of the Company at www.centurysunshine.com.hk.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing for the attention of the Vice President-
Investor Relations of the Company whose contact details are as
follows:

Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

Email: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk

The Vice-President — Investor Relations of the Company shall
forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to the
Board and/or relevant committees of the Board to answer the
shareholders’ questions where appropriate.

Company Secretary

Mr. Luk Sai Wai, Simon is an employee of the Company and has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with effect from 1
May 2010. The biographical details of Mr. Luk are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile”.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Luk has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial year ended
31 December 2013.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013, which are set out on pages 59 to 164.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are shown under Note
22 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 8 to the financial statements. The Directors
consider that the Group's operations are principally carried out in the
PRC and Hong Kong. Accordingly, no geographical segment results are
presented.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 59 and 60.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013 of 2.00 HK cents per share (the “Final
Dividend”) (2012: 1.03 HK cents) with an option to elect to receive the
Final Dividend by way of scrip share(s) under a scrip dividend scheme (the
“Scrip Dividend Scheme”). The share registrar will be closed from 5 May
2014 to 13 May 2014, both days inclusive. Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 13 May 2014
(the “Record Date”) will be entitled to receive the Final Dividend. Under
the Scrip Dividend Scheme, shareholders who are entitled to receive the
Final Dividend (other than shareholder(s) whose name(s) appear(s) on
the register of members of the Company on the Record Date and whose
registered address(es) on that date is/are outside Hong Kong (if any) to
whom the Directors, based on legal advice provided by legal advisers
and on account either of legal restrictions under the laws of the relevant
place or the requirements of the relevant regulatory body or stock
exchange in that place, consider it necessary or expedient to exclude
such shareholder(s) from the Scrip Dividend Scheme) (the “Qualifying
Shareholders”) may elect to receive the Final Dividend wholly or partly
by way of scrip shares(s) in lieu of cash at a fixed price of HK$0.70 per
share. The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to (a) the approval of the
Final Dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting to be held on 28 April 2014 (“2014 AGM") and (b)
listing approval being granted by the Stock Exchange in respect of the
scrip shares to be issued pursuant thereto.

On the condition that the payment of the Final Dividend by way of the
Scrip Dividend Scheme is approved by the shareholders at the 2014
AGM, a circular containing further details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme,
together with a form of election (to the Qualifying Shareholders only),
will be despatched to the shareholders shortly after the Record Date.

It is expected that the cheques for cash entitlement and the certificates
for scrip shares will be sent on or about 27 June 2014 to the shareholders
who are qualified for the Final Dividend.
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Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last 5
financial years is set out on page 6 of the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set
out in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 33 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$787,737,000 (2012: HK$741,541,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)

Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Yang Yuchuan (appointed on 1 July 2013)

Non-Executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Liu Hoi Keung

Sheng Hong

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Shum Sai Chit, Ms. Chi Bi Fen, Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Mr. Liu
Hoi Keung will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Mr. Yang Yuchuan, being the Director appointed by the Board after
the preceding general meeting of the Company, shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, would offer
himself for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent company was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors or the management shareholders
of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 29 to 31 of the annual report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

49



50

fERR TSl

BRI EBREBEREFZEINERAEEE
% ARREEIER BB TERZAE
AT - ARATIF2008F12 A3 RN —IBHE
BT EI([5T8))) - AERATEEARAE
EREE ZEZERHASEEMERZASE
ABR - HREE RIS o BRIEFT S
BUEBIER] - BRI RZ B R10FREK °

RBETELIRUATRSE  BHEBRK
RELEARBAMERZAARRR ([
R DERRERMIZHETE (R
SRBEAER L A HASER S BERBR S
BREXRMI 2 FHWRHE - R 2@
180.02/8 7T » RIRFT & AT E X i BB I 8 It
ZEEBENEE - ARAAZRARE N
ZEBEITHA30% REMREBREZE
#1& - AR ABRARRAAFIR100TT °

NAR A BEITHERE  BREAITERE S
A2 ERER L ETHRG 2
- & ETBBAIERTE BB BHTRNG
#910% o ZK /A &) A] £ £F 7] B i 58 %7 3% 10%PR
B8 MEZEARIR BT AR RIS AR SR L R FEE
WK FAETT  WARTEREEIRE
L EA BB AR E T AT A BRI RN ARET
FEHEIRER G TEITHNROEE @ TFE8
BB EITIRDHI30% ©

20135 F 1R
RS EEER AR A A

Share Option Scheme

In order to attract and retain the best quality employees for the
development of the Group’s businesses and to provide additional
incentives or rewards to selected qualifying participants, the Company
adopted a share option scheme on 3 December 2008 (the “Scheme”). The
qualifying participants mainly include employees of the Group, Directors
and contractors, suppliers or service providers of the Group who have
contribution to the Group. The Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years.

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date
of offer of the option; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share of HK$0.02. The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. Upon acceptance of the offer for the grant of option, an
amount of HKS$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company.

The Company can issue options so that the total number of shares that
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme does not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the
date of approval of the Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10% limit
at any time, subject to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular
and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided that the number of
shares to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.



Scheme

2/72013F12H31HFER  Share Options Held at 31 December 2013 under the

(A) EE
Employees 150,500,000 - (15,055,000) 135,445,000 05
- 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 08
(B) EE
Directors
WX 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 05
Chi Wen Fu
LR 15,000,000 - (3,000,000) 12,000,000 05
Shum Sai Chit
HwES 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 05
Chi Bi Fen
PHREB 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 05
Guo Mengyong
B 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 05
Kwong Ping Man
BHR 5,000,000 - (2,000,000) 3,000,000 05
Liu Hoi Keung
Bt 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 05
Sheng Hong
220,500,000 - (20,055,000) 200,445,000 05
- 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 08
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(i) ESERARFAzER

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2013, the relevant interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Directors’ Interests in the Company

RORE Long Positions in Shares
BE
BEBRE 2013F12A31H
2B HADTE BT
(H=E3) RAZBE AL
FERHEE Percentage
Number of Shares held of issued share
o ital of th
EEps BARER RiBks AR At Number of c;;f;:ny"as .
Personal Spouse Corporate options held 31 December
Name of director interests interests interests Total (note 3) 2013
WX E (k] 168,741,250 - 933,792,930 1,102,534,180 42.39%
Chi Wen Fu ("Mr. Chi") (FEET) 20,000,000 0.77%
(note 1)
Lt 7,311,940 - - 7,311,940 0.28%
Shum Sai Chit 12,000,000 0.46%
HEZ 7,625,000 - - 7,625,000 0.29%
Chi Bi Fen 15,000,000 0.58%
BEINEEE]D - 22,795,949 229,597,221 252,393,170 - 9.70%
Yang Yuchuan (F7E2)
("Mr. Yang") (note 2)
B - - - - -
Guo Mengyong 5,000,000 0.19%
B - - - - -
Kwong Ping Man 5,000,000 0.19%
ElE: - - - - -
Liu Hoi Keung 3,000,000 0.12%
2 - - - - -
Sheng Hong 5,000,000 0.19%
52 20135 F 1R
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and Any Associated Corporation (Continued)
(i) Directors’ Interests in the Company (Continued)
Long Positions in Shares (Continued)
notes:

1. These Shares are held by Alpha Sino International Limited (“Alpha Sino”)
and are deemed corporate interests by virtue of Mr. Chi’s holding of
83.74% of the issued share capital of Alpha Sino which entitled him to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power
at general meeting of Alpha Sino.

2. These Shares are held by Best Equity Holdings Limited (“Best Equity”) and
are deemed corporate interests by virtue of Mr. Yang'’s holding of 47.17%
of the issued share capital of Best Equity which entitled him to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Best Equity.

3. Details of options held are set out in the above section headed “Share
Options Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates
had interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Directors or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2013, persons who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

BZE

2013%12A31H

A B2 81T

RERERB BFEME RGEHE BREHE BARzEDL

Percentage of

issued share

capital of the

Number Number Company as at

Name of shareholder Nature of Shares of options 31 December 2013

X E RE 1,102,534,180 4239%
Chi Wen Fu Long position (F=ET)
(note 1)

3] 20,000,000 0.77%

Long position (FF3E2)
(note 2)

k= R 933,792,930 35.91%
Alpha Sino Long position (PfF5E3)
(note 3)

R rA 252,393,170 9.70%
Yang Yuchuan Long position (FF5E4)
(note 4)

FEN(TH L) R 229,597,221 8.83%
Zou Li ("Ms. Zou") Long position (PfF5ES)
(note 5)

Best Equity &E 229,597,221 8.83%
Long position (B 5ES)
(note 5)
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company (Continued)

notes:

1. Mr. Chi has interest in an aggregate of 1,102,534,180 Shares of which (a)
168,741,250 Shares are beneficially owned by him and registered in his name; and
(b) 933,792,930 Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of his holding of
83.74% of the issued share capital of Alpha Sino which entitled him to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meeting of
Alpha Sino.

2. Details of options held are set out in the above section headed “Share Options
Scheme”.

3. Pursuant to a share mortgage dated 13 November 2006, Alpha Sino, being the
substantial shareholder of the Company, had mortgaged 244,578,000 Shares (the
“Shares Mortgaged”) (representing approximately 12% of the then issued share
capital of the Company on 13 November 2006) to International Finance Corporation
(“IFC") to secure repayment of the IFC Loan under a loan agreement dated 13
November 2006 (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into between the IFC as lender and
(i) Green Land Bio- Products Company Limited (“Green Land"); (ii) Century Sunshine
(Nanping) Biology Engineering Company Limited; (iii) Century Sunshine (Jiangxi)
Ecological Technology Limited; and (iv) Century Sunshine (Zhangzhou) Ecological
Technology Limited, all being the then subsidiaries of the Company (altogether as
“Parties”).

On 3 September 2012, a supplemental agreement was entered into by the Parties to
release Green Land from the Loan Agreement.

On 13 November 2013, the IFC Loan was fully repaid by the Parties and the Shares
Mortgaged was then released accordingly.

4. Mr. Yang has interest in an aggregate of 252,393,170 Shares of which (a) 22,795,949
Shares are beneficially owned by his spouse, Ms. Lao Min, and registered in her
name; and (b) 229,597,221 Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of his
holding of 47.17% of the issued share capital of Best Equity which entitled him to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Best Equity (note 5).

5. These Shares are held by Best Equity and are deemed corporate interests by virtue
of Ms. Zou's or Mr. Yang's holding of 52.83% and 47.17% respectively of the issued
share capital of Best Equity which entitled her or him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Best Equity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

55



EEESYN

REA » ARBBER] LN EFE AR
ARBEMRAEMBEAR D EH 2 EERIT
BAH -

FEHRERRER
AEEAEE T BHERRESEE RS
RIHEB 2 LLBIT :

g
= =AM IER 12%
— SAHER AL 41%
HE
= BAEF 3%
= SAEEA 10%

EE  REZHEBALTHEMBRR(BEESAHR
HPER AR B PRAS%IA E)BEEN Et &
HERmA TP AR

BHEXS
AFEEREFELRBEMRBERS °
ABRFREZTEM

BIEARAR B AREE  URBESAN
HE REAREE2014FE3048 AR EE
ARABIRD 2B D ELBAERAREEITRD
HEEL 7 25% ©

% B AR

HZE2013F 128318 IEFER R B & B R4
S EBAAR AR EX » HEHRANE
BT 7BRRAFAE EER - AQRERED
BRITZRRAFAS LIRE—BAZEE
RETEBEEMEEAER AR BARR T
R 2 %A -

AEEZ M
LS
HiTEE

A8 0 201453851

20135 F 1R
RS EEER AR A A

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 12%
- 5 largest suppliers in aggregate 41%
Sales
- the largest customer 3%
= 5 largest customers in aggregate 10%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Connected Transaction
There was no connected transaction during the year and in last year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the percentage of the
Company's Shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of
the Company’s total number of issued shares during the year and up to 4
March 2014.

Auditors

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment
of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company
for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Sai Chit
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 5 March 2014
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
1 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 5 March 2014



mEEmkEMEEKER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2013F 128318 L EE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
B EE FERT FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEKEHER Continuing operations
WA Revenue 7 1,640,291 1,242,930
SHERAR Cost of sales (1,132,526) (910,734)
EH Gross profit 507,765 332,196
H ol A Rz Other income and gains 9 11,782 12,015
HERMSHEER Selling and marketing costs (69,437) (48,948)
THRAX Administrative expenses (55,767) (48,084)
BEBERENEEIRKE  Realised and unrealised (loss)/gain
REW(EE) WES on investments held for trading (1,313) 1,457
MEER Finance costs 10 (21,441) (20,363)
M FT 1SR A& Al Profit before income tax 371,589 228,273
FrisfiFAx Income tax expense 1 (94,456) (47,984)
BHEQEEBMFEREF  Profit for the year from continuing
operations 277,133 180,289
BRIEREEK Discontinued operation
B4R | TSR Loss for the year from discontinued
FAESE operation = (11,705)
FRER Profit for the year 12 277,133 168,584
HignlgeEs o= ltems that may be reclassified
Bz IHE ¢ subsequently to profit or loss:
Hip2EIA Other comprehensive income
(HBRFTISHL) : (net of income tax):
AEHERE ¢ Available-for-sale investment:
FREMAHREERE Net gain arising on revaluation of
EA W55 available-for-sale investment
during the year 18,867 123,557
REBINEBTESE 2 Exchange differences arising from
HEHERE translation of foreign operations 54,953 28,584
FREMZEBA Other comprehensive income for
(fOBRFT5HE) the year (net of income tax) 73,820 152,141
FRAZHEBALE Total comprehensive income for
the year 350,953 320,725
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mERRREMEEKER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2013F 12831 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
B =E F#&T FBTT
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
THIALREEFERRR : Profit for the year attributable to:
ViN/NEIEZ N Owners of the Company 230,215 130,312
FEPERR R = Non-controlling interests 46,918 38,272
277,133 168,584
THALEAEE Total comprehensive income
LNt attributable to:
RAREEA Owners of the Company 295,930 249,417
SRR AE Non-controlling interests 55,023 71,308
350,953 320,725
BRER : Earnings per share:
RAFER From continuing and
EAR IE AR 5T discontinued operations 16
—HK — basic 8.961llicents 5.08fllicents
— s — diluted 8.691llicents 5.08llicents
K EFEREERS From continuing operations
—EX - basic 8.961licents 541 lcents
—#E — diluted 8.691llicents 5411llcents

M REMEB AR A VB HREN—a0

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

201356 12A318
As at 31 December 2013

2013 2012
B aE FBT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
FREBEE Non-current assets

T b R Land use rights 17 148,003 147,089
VI - B MR Property, plant and equipment 18(a) 936,047 619,040
REME Investment properties 19 141,323 140,108
mEEE Intangible assets 20 80 80
BRI Mining rights 21 576,278 571,859
S EFEERIE Payment for acquisition of patents 57,645 =

BEWXE BB Deposits for acquisition of property,

FEENES plant and equipment 8,538 =

A ERE Available-for-sale investment 23 = 123,586
1,867,914 1,601,762
REBEE Current assets
AHEERE Available-for-sale investment 23 142,453 -
FE Inventories 24 93,167 69,981
T Hb s AR A Land use rights 17 3,485 3,385
B 5 L H A IR - Trade and other receivables,

FERFRERES prepayments and deposits 25 302,915 173,175
HIEEERE Investments held for trading 26 7,387 11,941
RITER Deposits with banks 27 40,992 112,043
BehERIIRELER Cash and cash equivalents 27 381,909 391,151

972,308 761,676
B RBEE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 hEMEMNFRIE Trade and other payables 28 209,782 130,113
FERT RS ER Income tax payable 19,970 15,988
BE Borrowings 30 301,076 317,102
530,828 463,203
REEEFE Net current assets 441,480 298,473
EELABRABARE Total assets less current liabilities 2,309,394 1,900,235
W ERBERE Less: Non-current liabilities
EIEUT A Deferred revenue 31 24,980 =
RIERIBRE Deferred tax liabilities 32 131,452 130,721
156,432 130,721
BEERE Net assets 2,152,962 1,769,514
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AAREE AELRAR Capital and reserves attributable to

R #E owners of the Company
N Share capital 33 61,810 60,683
B Reserves 34 1,927,679 1,568,569
1,989,489 1,629,252
FrEm R Non-controlling interests 163,473 140,262
ERAEE Total equity 2,152,962 1,769,514

EEEMN2014F3 A5 Bt & RIFHE TR EHD
F5OR64B A MEHRE - YHTIES
REEE

X E
Chi Wen Fu
=

Director

B RERMEB AR A M ERERN—BD0 ©

2013 F 3R
RS EEER AR A A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 164 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 5 March 2014 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Tt E
Shum Sai Chit
=

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.



BRI R

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

201356 12A318
As at 31 December 2013

2013 2012
BaE F& T AT
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - R NRE Property, plant and equipment 18(b) 807 166
KRB AR ZKE Investments in subsidiaries 22(a 2,108 2,108
2,915 2,274
REBEE Current assets
B 5 hEMEUWFRIE Trade and other receivables,

SENEREY 8- prepayments and deposits 25 855 1,545
BIEEERE Investments held for trading 26 - 3,252
JE B B8 A R FR IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 22(b) 852,866 799,130
BehERBREEE Cash and cash equivalents 27 613 377

854,334 804,304
W REBAaE Less: Current liabilities
B 5 R HhEIE Trade and other payables 28 1,481 2,535
FBEREL Financial guarantee contracts 29 85 -
1,566 2,535
REVEEFE Net current assets 852,768 801,769
EEAEBERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 855,683 804,043
BEEFE Net assets 855,683 804,043
AAREE AEGERA Capital and reserves attributable to
R #E owners of the Company
%N Share capital 33 61,810 60,683
& Reserves 34 793,873 743,360
B Total equity 855,683 804,043

BEEN20145F3 A5 B #EfE R IRE TR H R
FSOE 1648 2 HIFEIRE - WA FHESEAREK

BE

signed on its behalf by:

M E

Chi Wen Fu

SRR B A IR — B -

EE

Director

statements.

ot
Shum Sai Chit
Ed

Director

The financial statements on pages 59 to 164 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 5 March 2014 and are

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
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RERBETR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2013F 12831 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

KATREARR
Attributable to owners of the Company
EAEE
e EXGE fRRE  BRE AWEE #ik
Ra REER (M6 ERRE  (KR6) (ME6)  RE RE ZERE R2EN M ER 4
Capital
redemption Capital  Statutory ~ Share Non-
Share  Share reserve Revaliatin  reserve  reserve  option Trandhtin  Other Retained controling
capital premium  (note(i)  reseve (note(il) (notefii))  reserve  reseve  reserve eamings Sub-otal interests  Total
Tin Tér fén Tén Tér T Thn T Thr Thr TAn T TEn
HS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 RSO0 RSO0 HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOD0  HKSO00 RSO0 HKSOmD
MR Asat 1 January 2012 61513 740925 2669 - 1366 3505 - T04% (105 470032 130448 87171 148005
Emi) Prftfor the year - - - - - - - - SBIBR BIL 16
EREGRANA  Othercomprehensive ncome for the year
(HRAER) (et ofincome
HHERE Avalkble-forsale nvestment
ERBRATHLERE  Netgai aising on evdluaton o
EENaTE avallblefor sl imvestment
during the year - = - 98 = = = = = - D8 3089 1B35Y
BERIERAEL  Bohange dfeencesaing fom
LEREE trandton of foreign opeations - - - - - - - - - B8 e B
ERAAUABE  Tod compiehensie ncome for te year - - - 96 - - - x SN 1k A1V VN 1
G Cancelaionoshres I T R )
Rhifsint Fldend i e O N )
ERnEE Trangfer o eserve - = - - - 510 - - - (510) - - -
WERMBATTAAMER  Acquiston of addifionel nterestin
subsicries - - - - - - - - (54 - B4 (14 (199
REEERIARENZ R Equitysetled sharebased rensactions - - - - - -1 - g BT -0
HERBRR(EE7)  Disosd ofsubsdaies Note 3 - - - - - - - M - B (648 (160
ROENAAR  Asit31 December 2012
WEIR1E and 1 January 2013 60683 733752 349 Qe 13666 35560 189 97132 (105 590578 169280 140262 1769514
R Proftfor theyear = = 5 = = = 5 = - B025 230215 46918 277133
ERERRANA  Othercomprehensive ncome for theyear
(HBAER) (netof ncome ta
RHERE Avalable-orsale nvestment
EREEAHAERE  Netganarsig on revluaton of
ErETE anlableforsae ivestment
during the year - - - 14150 - - - - - - W4150  4nT 18867
BEEERIES  Bchange diferences asing fom
LEREE trandlton of foreign operations - - - - - - - 51565 - - 51565 3388 54983
ER2ENAEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 14150 - - - 51565 - 80215 295930 55023 350953
ENFERE Fineldhvidend paid 6 (45%) - - - - - - - - [3863) - (3863
ERTERE Trnlr toresnve - - - - - R . - - (B - - -
AHEAEZ Change n ownership terest
BEEZ() i subsidaes o) - - - - - - - - B - B (81 u5n
1TERIRERRA7  Issue ofordinary shares upon everc
Lk of shate options 41 10069 - - - - () - - - 100 - 100
TREE IR 225 Equity setled share-based tensactions - - - - - - 4760 - - - 4760 - 4760
ROENA3IA s at 31 December 2013 61,810 739232 3499 106818 13666 67,812 6136 148697 53278 788,541 1989489 163473 2,152,962
201355
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GEX

0]

(i)

(iii)

BABEEFHEAR AN E KT HR DB
RERBENER 2 ADERN 2 EE -

AAFHEREEESHECKRBERENMCZ M
ARBRMEE - EREI|BBBROMETZIA
RERMWEE  MERZEE -

EERBEIERAMBARRAETEARLNE
(T B )R E M ERR AT IIAE R B 10% K A& T
RELELHRBENES

RIEF BRI 2 HB AR 2 A ERME i
ZHRBERIRER - ZEMB AR AR L 10%2
B BT 15 B 18 05 Il (1R 7 BB R0k B 3 3Rk o
BAEVERLTRHE  RIEZAESEHEE
BB A B RE & AN50% ° 3% AFE S {2 7] AR % i
MEBARBEFEZEE BAWNBARIZEE
KL NHB AR Z B

REFEER 24 EEEERER I MAR
EERBRHNE TR AREFZRELD
RAZARERARFEDRBES - ZEED
AIHARNGEEL, RN E DL ZREE - NEW
BRDIK ©

B HERMEB A A M ERERN—FFD

notes:

(i)

(iii)

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the Shares of the
Company which was transferred from the Company’s retained earnings upon
repurchase and cancellation of Shares by the Company.

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the subsidiaries that have been acquired and capitalised pursuant to a group
reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s Shares issued in exchange
therefore.

Statutory reserve mainly represents the fund set aside by the subsidiaries based
on 10% of their net profit of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") statutory
financial statements and that for the purpose of certain safety production activities.

In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries established in the
PRC and the relevant PRC rules and regulations, these subsidiaries are required to set
aside 10% of their profit after income tax as recorded in the PRC statutory financial
statements as statutory reserve, except where the reserve fund balance has reached
50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The reserve fund can only be used to
make good the subsidiaries’ previous years’ losses, to expand the subsidiaries’
production operations or to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State Administration of Work Safety
of the PRC and other relevant regulatory bodies, the Group is required to set aside
funds mainly for mining of dolomite and serpentine at prescribed rates. These funds
can be used for maintenance and/or improvements of safety of these activities, and
is not available for distribution to shareholders.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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REBRERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2013F 128318 ILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
FET BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ReEEH Operating activities

MAT SR ATSR(EB)  Profit/(loss) before income tax
—HEREER — Continuing operations 371,589 228,273
—BERIEREE - Discontinued operation = (11,430)
371,589 216,843

FLTFIEE (EL A% Adjustments for:

HTE R Depreciation and amortisation 75,346 65,716
VRER Finance costs 21,441 20,363

HEWE « BELRE Loss on disposal of property,

K18 plant and equipment 254 119
REREHE Allowance for doubtful debts = 1,944
B[O e E 5 5IE Reversal of impairment loss on trade

RIEEE receivables = (2,068)
BIEEBEREND# Realised and unrealised loss/(gain) on

&ﬂimfﬁiﬁﬁ/(uim investments held for trading 1,313 (4,679)
HENB R R A EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 1,964
R EHA Dividend income (417) (693)
FESA Interest income (5,157) (8,247)
b 5 B85 58 Net exchange loss - 528
S E IR D Equity settled share-based payments

NRZX5 4,760 1,819

BIEE B E Operating cash flows before movements
REMmE in working capital 469,129 293,609
FEEEm, (Increase)/decrease in inventories (20,617) 5,594
25N E AW EE (Increase)/decrease in trade and
FERFRERIES other receivables,
(), prepayments and deposits (131,638) 16,806
E 5 MEMBENFIA Increase/(decrease) in trade and
#n, Crd) other payables 75,168 (17,906)
BERFEEERE Purchase of investments held for trading - (54,635)
HEFIEESRENFTE  Proceeds from disposal of investments held
RIE for trading = 63,034
i “%Wﬁﬁ%fﬁ'ﬁﬁi Cash generated from operations 392,042 306,502
BB Income tax paid (94,137) (53,964)
RESEEFTEEMIESEE  Net cash generated from operating activities 297,905 252,538
66 2013F 3R
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GRERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2013F 12831 BILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
FERT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
REEH Investing activities
REBEOREIHRE Early redemption of held-to-maturity
investment - 10,000
RITEIRD Decrease in deposits with banks 72,734 218,129
HEFEBEESIREMFAE  Proceeds from disposal of investments held
I for trading 3,466 -
BEME  WENMKRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (348,865) (375,405)
BEAHHERE Purchase of available-for-sale investment = (29)
ST EFEERIE Payment for acquisition of patents (57,645) =
BEME - HEMEE Deposits for acquisition of
Mize property, plant and equipment (8,538) -
AR EMBARNIEE  Netcash inflow in respect of the disposal
MAERE of subsidiaries 7,536 22,256
BUFI B Interest received 7,395 8,247
AR S Dividend received 417 693
HEWE - BE MEE Proceeds from disposal of property,

BIET1S 5RIE plant and equipment 199 234
BRETHFTAMNIEELTEE  Net cash used in investing activities (323,301) (115,875)
RS SEE Financing activities

S B ETS EE Proceeds from new borrowings 295,451 172,704
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (321,215) (142,569)
2R A Interest paid (20,428) (18,224)
EARERE Final dividend paid (3,863) (9,026)
IT{E B IERRET Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of
Bl share options 10,027 =
FESHAR D Cancellation of shares = (8,003)
RMB AR R EE Net cash inflow in respect of change in
ZBEERANFRE ownership interest of subsidiaries 21,571 (1,999)
PRIEUT A SE 0 Increase in deferred revenue 24,420 -
BMETEBFESE(FTH)H Net cash generated from/(used in)
HEREE financing activities 5,963 (7,117)
BHERERELER (FY),” Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
B HNEEE cash equivalents (19,433) 129,546
EYNEERZERIBELER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 391,151 240,739
MEERBEHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 10,191 20,866
ERNEESRERITLIER Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 381,909 391,151

B ImRNEB A LRA SmR e — &b © The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2013F 12831 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

—fRER

B EEERER AR AR
A REMBAR (GBI AEE])E
DRECEHEERER BEERE
T A BRI B 2 7% - B E 20129128
JTHEFER - AEEEHEES M
i

ARATTIA20035F1 A21 B R BEMSE
ERBREAFENE(1961F AR K47
AERBIERASHES ML E
MEARARF o QA AL D 72004
E2HI7HREBBERZHAR AR
(M pr D AR (MBI ZR ) £
W HA20085F 7 A31 H BSEE R Al Z AR &Y
AL o B20085F8 A1 #E - AR
AR DERBIERLEM - EF
RE - ARABZREZER AR BT E
RBR AT ZARBREBEL
e Y AVAVA/NCT I

REMBHRRANET(ET]) RE
iz - BARFNINEEEEHER © BRIE
HEHHA - TRME SR LT
(TTExTDFE-

20135 F 3R
4B R EIEA AR A A

General Information

Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in magnesium product business, fertiliser
business, metallurgical flux business. During the year ended 31
December 2012, the Group has disposed its financial service
business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
January 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 17 February 2004, the
Company’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
("“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and were withdrawn from the GEM Board on 31 July
2008. Since 1 August 2008, the Company’s shares have been
listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In the opinion
of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Alpha Sino International Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HKS"), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HKS'000) except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE20135F12A31B ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

P& A3 5] R RAE 5] & B B 1S R
HEA([BBMKREER )
AEE  AEEEEMATHESS
R e((EFgstmAag)EmZ
HBALEEZESHEAR2013F181H
2 BB FEREER TR
KASETZER - BET RZRB([FEBH

BaEEA])

EEMBREERE IR BAER
CHES
BEABHEENZ 0 REMBER

BEMBREEAENE  HRARH
BEABREERE R  RENAMER ER

ERUEREENENRE  ATENE
EANEREENES  BE-HEEREER
(BFIA) TRAR
BENBREERF 0% HFANKER 4R
EEUEREEAENER THREENLL
ERUEREEAEE  ERAER:
(BFIA) BEES|
ERAMBRSER(BIR) FANBREEEE
B (2009 E2011
FRH)
BEeHENE1R(BHIA) 25 2ENEER
BEQHERE 195 EEEH
(P20 EEERT)
BB sHERB 75 BUMBHRR
(P20 E&ERT)
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(R0NEEERT) RELE
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B BH OIS LRI E LT -

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loan

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Joint Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities: Transition Guidance
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009-2011 Cycle

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income
Employee Benefits

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20
Except for the amendments to HKAS 1, the application of these

new HKFRSs has no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

The nature of the impending changes in accounting policy on
adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1 is described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2013F 12831 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement of comprehensive
income is renamed as a statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and an income statement is renamed as a
statement of profit or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two
categories in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and
(b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis. The amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income (Continue)
The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these

consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 (Amendmen

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (Amendmen

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKAS 36

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

! Effective for annual
earlier application pe

Financial Instruments?
Hedge Accounting and
ts) amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39°

Investment Entities'
ts)

Defined Benefits Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle?

Levies'

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
rmitted.

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier

application permitted.

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continue)

The date when entities would be required to apply HKFRS 9 was
previously stated at 1 January 2015. This mandatory effective
date has been removed to provide sufficient time for preparers
of financial statements to make the transition to the new
requirements, which will now become effective from a later date
yet to be announced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a significant impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
(e.g. the Group's available-for-sale investments may have to
be measured at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting
periods, with changes in the fair value being recognised in
profit or loss). Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the
related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such
as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods
within those annual periods. The disclosures should be
provided retrospectively for all comparative periods. However,
the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures being
made with regard to offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities in the future.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 - Impairment of Assets:
Recoverable Amount Disclosure for Non-Financial
Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 are to remove certain unintended
disclosure requirements which may be introduced by the
consequential amendments to HKAS 36 when HKFRS 13 was
issued. Furthermore, these amendments require the disclosure of
additional information about the fair value measurement when
the recoverable amount of impaired assets is based on fair value
less costs of disposal. The amendments to HKAS 36 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Earlier
application is permitted. However, an entity may not apply those
amendments in periods (including comparative periods) in which
it does not also apply HKFRS 13.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 36 will have no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) - Investment Entities

The investment entities amendments apply to a particular class of
business that qualify as investment entities. The term ‘investment
entity’ refers to an entity whose business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. An investment entity must also evaluate the
performance of its investments on a fair value basis. Such entities
could include private equity organisations, venture capital
organisations, pension funds, sovereign wealth funds and other
investment funds.

Under HKFRS 10, reporting entities were required to consolidate
all investees that they control (i.e. all subsidiaries). Preparers and
users of financial statements have suggested that consolidating
the subsidiaries of investment entities does not result in useful
information for investors. Rather, reporting all investments,
including investments in subsidiaries, at fair value, provides the
most useful and relevant information.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) - Investment Entities (Continued)

In response to this, the amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 and require investment
entities to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss, rather than consolidate them. The amendments also
set out disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2014 with early
adoption permitted in order to allow investment entities to apply
the amendments at the same time they first apply the rest of
HKFRS 10.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27 (2011) will have no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions.

Amendments to HKAS 39 - Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The narrow-scope amendments will allow hedge accounting
to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been
designated as a hedging instrument, is novated to effect clearing
with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation,
if specific conditions are met (in this context, a novation
indicates that parties to a contract agree to replace their original
counterparty with a new one).

This relief has been introduced in response to legislative changes
across many jurisdictions that would lead to the widespread
novation of over-the-counter derivatives. These legislative
changes were prompted by a G20 commitment to improve
transparency and regulatory oversight of over-the-counter
derivatives in an internationally consistent and non-discriminatory
way.

Similar relief will be included in HKFRS 9.
The amendments will be effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2014 and applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 - Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Continue)

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 39 will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 is an interpretation of HKAS 37 and addresses
how an entity should account for liabilities to pay levies imposed
by governments, other than income taxes, in its financial
statements. The principal question raised was about when the
entity should recognise a liability to pay a levy. It clarifies that
the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy
is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers
the payment of the levy. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier
application permitted.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"), and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. Total comprehensive income and expense of a
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s Ownership Interests in
Existing Subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a jointly controlled entity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

(if) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of an acquiree’s share-based payment transactions
with share-based payment transactions of the Group
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date; and

(iii) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business Combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction
-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or another measurement basis
required by another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business Combinations (Continued)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss
when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.

Acquisition of Additional Interest in a Subsidiary

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already
controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on such acquisition
represents the difference between the cost of additional interest
acquired and the increase in the Group's share of the net carrying
amount of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. The difference between the cost of additional
interest acquired and the book value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities attributable to the additional
interest acquired is recognised as a reserve movement (other
reserve). The difference represents the difference that arose since
the original acquisition date that is attributable to the Group'’s
increased interest in the subsidiary. On the subsequent disposal
of the subsidiary, the reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investment including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment have been established.

Advisory service income is recognised whenever the services
are completed. When the service are partly completed, the
Group only recognises the revenue to the extent of amount
representing the proportion of services completed or equals to
the amount received, whichever is lower.

Brokerage income is recognised on a trade date basis.

Commission income, stock handling income, custodian fee
income, referral fee income, investment management fee income,
performance fee income and other advisory service fee income
are recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Financial service fee income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Office management fee income from service agreements is
recognised pro-rata over the life of the agreement corresponding
to notional delivery of the service.

Any other income not mentioned above is recognised whenever
it is received or receivable.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including freehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress), are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line methods.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over the lease term and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
or no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Land Use Rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as prepaid
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, amortisation is charged to profit or loss over the period of
the rights or the term of the respective enterprise to which the
land use rights are granted, whichever is the shorter, using the
straight-line method.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerships
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as Lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets Acquired in a Business Combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Technical Know-how

Expenditure on acquired technical know-how is capitalised and
amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life of 5 years, from the date when the technical know-how
is available for use.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during the development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Mining Rights

Mining rights, including transferred exploration and evaluation
assets, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. The mining rights are amortised on the
production quantities over the total estimated mineral reserve.
Mining rights are written off to the profit or loss if the mining
property is abandoned.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value, are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS)
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (i.e. the translation reserve)
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over jointly
controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign Currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Share-based Payment Transactions

Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to employee compensation reserve.

For share options that are vested immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee compensation reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in employee compensation reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make sale.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-
sales financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of financial assets and is determined at time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, deposits with banks,
cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from subsidiaries and
dividend receivable) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the effect of
discontinuing is immaterial.

Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of revaluation reserve until the financial asset
is disposed of or determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all of the Group's financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial Liabilities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Other Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into other
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that from an integral part of
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible Bonds

Convertible bonds issued by a subsidiary of the Company that
contain both the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the subsidiary’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible instruments. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the notes into equity, is included
in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Convertible Bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, represented by the option
to convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
subsidiary, will remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the conversion option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance recognised in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are recognised directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group are derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety
(e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of
a transferred asset or retains a residual interest that does not
result in the retention of substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the Group retains control), the Group allocates
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specific
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment Losses on Tangible and Intangible
Assets other than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as immediately in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Provision

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation, as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the effect of the time value money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation.

Related Parties Transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Related Parties Transactions (Continued)

) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when
there is a transfer of resources or obligations between related

parties.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group'’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(a) Estimated Impairment of Investment
Properties, Mining Rights, Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Group evaluates whether investment properties,
mining rights, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 3. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units represent
the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell or its
value-in-use. The calculations of fair value less costs to
sell or value-in-use require the use of estimates. During
the year, the Group did not provide any impairment for
investment properties, mining rights, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (2012: HKSNil).

(b) Estimated Useful Lives of Investment
Properties, Property, Plant and Equipment,
Intangible Assets and Mining Rights
The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for its investment properties, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
investment properties, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of similar nature and functions and
the mineral reserve determined by independent technical
adviser. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to market conditions. Management will increase the
depreciation/amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
the Group did not change the estimated useful lives of
investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and mining rights.
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Estimated Impairment of Inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventories
listing on a product-by-product basis at the end of the
reporting period. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. During
the year, the Group did not provide any allowance for
inventories (2012: HKSNIil).

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
may be uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables
The impairment of trade and other receivables are
based on the ongoing evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgment. From time to time, the Group
may experience delays in collection. Where recoverability
of trade and other receivables are called into doubts,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, provision may be required. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectable, yet subsequently
become uncollectable and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Changes in the collectability of trade and other
receivables for which provisions are not made could affect
our results of operations. During the year, the Group has
provided impairment loss of HKSNil for trade and other
receivables (2012: HK$1,944,000).
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5. @MIA

5. Financial instruments

(a) =®WIAEH (a) Categories of Financial Instruments
REE VN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FE&xT T F#&T T
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
EHMEE Financial assets
ﬁ?ﬂ&%ﬂﬂl%ﬂlﬁ(@% Loans and receivables
TEFARIRE (including deposits with
&%@ﬁ@lﬁ E) banks and cash and
cash equivalents) 697,864 653,574 853,535 799,565
AN ERE Available-for-sale investment 142,453 123,586 = =
RAFEFFABEA  Financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss 7,387 11,941 - 3,252
847,704 789,101 853,535 802,817
SRas Financial liabilities
BESHA AR Amortised cost 431,371 396,273 1,481 2,535
WIEERERD Financial guarantee contracts - = 85
431,371 396,273 1,566 2,535
(b) HHEEREEBERBE (b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
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Policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include investment held for trading, trade
and other receivables, deposits with banks, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, other price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Group's and the Company’s overall risk management
programme focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s and the Company’s financial performance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

105



106

Pt RS SR 2 Y
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2013F 12831 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

5. £@WMIA(E)
(b) HBERREEEERIEE

(#8)

(i) SMERE
ENAREB RIS EK
R BEMBEBEFE
KB ARMNINEE
BETE - MU PTER S
SNERBRIE T RE » &K
£ E B AT ERINE R
5  BENBABMERTZIN
SEE AR - AEE G
) BB E AME R B -
WHEREREELHFE
RINEE [z

(i) FIFEERE
AEEA@EBBIRT
GERREE 2 R FEF
KER(FEB D B2
B EE27 5230) o

RRFL BB AN EE,

G o
AA

BRE D

it % 72013512318
ZHRITEFEAERERE
EIEEEB RMEEFI=
BEEAMNER EF T
101 2 25 (F ) %0.1%)
(2012 - 10fE £ 2 ) -
AEBWFE @A EEAE
BRITEREEBEENA
FEEF TG
/R #9122,00058 7T
(20124F 1 186,000/ 7T °

HREEERRANEE
[ b ) 3t & PR A &
R IEER - E R
FREEE W ERRE
Tiw B EA A ©

REB AR B R
ERMISLRFHEZR
TRBZBAS RN EE
B o AT - AREIRITAE
SEFHLSEMEE
ESfla N e P e oy
B o

20135 F 3R
4B R EIEA AR A A

5. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has minimal exposures to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency
hedging significant foreign currency exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to deposits with banks and borrowings
(see Notes 27 and 30 respectively for details).

The Company has no significant interest rate risk.

Sensitivity Analysis

If interest rates on deposits with banks and cash
and cash equivalents and borrowings as at 31
December 2013 had been 10 basis points (0.1%
per annum) (2012: 10 basis points) higher/lower
than the actual effective interest rate, the Group's
profit for the year would have been approximately
HK$122,000 (2012: HKS186,000) higher/lower as
a result of a increase/decrease in fair value of
deposits with banks and borrowings.

As management considers the Group’s exposure
to the above fair value interest rate risk is not
significant, no interest-rate swaps or other
hedging activities are undertaken by management
during the year.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances carried at
prevailing market rate. However, such exposure is
minimal to the Group as the bank balances are all
short-term in nature.
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5. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and
unlisted investments in funds. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. The Group’s
other price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments listed in the PRC and on fund
investment quoted by the financial institutions.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2012: 10%) higher/lower, the
Group’s profit for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$739,000 (2012:
HKS$1,194,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of investments held for trading.

If the prices of respective equity instruments has
been 10% (2012: 10%) higher/lower, the Group's
other comprehensive income would increase/
decrease by approximately HKS$14,245,000 (2012:
HK$12,359,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investment.

Credit Risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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5. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The Group trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

With respect to credit risk arising from the
other financial assets of the Group which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit standing and the Group does
not expect to incur significant loss for unallocated
advances/deposits from these entities.

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that
sales of goods are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group’s deposits
with bank and deposits placed with financial
institutions are placed in high quality financial
institutions without significant exposure to credit
risk.

The directors consider that there is no significant
credit risk in respect of the Group’s deposits
with banks and deposits placed with financial
institutions as the financial institutions have no
record of default payment.

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping adequate facilities available.
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5. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity Risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's and the
Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled
on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months upon recognition equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

The Group
2013

BHREMERTIE Trade and other payables

{ii

55 Borrowings

2012

2012

Z5REMERNFE Trade and other payables 79,171 - 79,171 79171
f& Borrowings 707 327,065 - 327,065 317,102
406,236 - 406236 396,273
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5. @I A(E) 5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) HKEBEEBEEREE (b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and
(%) Policies (Continued)
(v) HmEBELEE(E) (v) Liquidity Risk (Continued)
PN The Company
2013 2013

% HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 R E M 58 Trade and other payables - 1,481 1,481
HBERER Financial guarantee contracts
i) (note) - 114,050 85
- 115,531 1,566
2012 2012

% HK$'000 HK$'000

Z 5 R E A E B Trade and other payables = 2,535 2,535
MisE - note:
B BERA A S E The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
ATERETREBERT & are the maximum amounts the Company could be forced to
DA LB 2 B settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
BERAENESSE - RER that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
ISR NTEER - AARIRAE Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
BRI SR S IR o R Company considers that it is more likely than not that such an
T ks I8 T AR amount will not be payable under the arrangement. However,
(RI2 2= B T BE M T TR this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
£ TR = A AT A I ER of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
SR T BT TR 1 B 7S e function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
I I B AR M AT AR o the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

5. S@MIAE) 5.  Financial Instruments (Continued)
(0 AFEFE (c)  Fair Value Measurements
IR TR B AR S B (s This note provides information about how the Group
EEEcREERERAEN determines fair values of various financial assets and
NEEHER - financial liabilities.
BEEMEEL L FEL Fair Value of the Group's Financial Assets
BHNFEFRTHMEER Z and Financial Liabilities that are Measured at
BB &R 2 FE Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
REBHOeMEERSHE Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
BEREWMEHREQTFER are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
2 o TRIEHBBEWMEEZ period. The following table gives information about
EIMEEREBREBENRTF how the fair values of these financial assets and financial
BE(EREMEANGEERDT liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
R ABIE)HER - technique(s) and inputs used).
RUTHEHNATE
Fair value as at
RELTER
EHEE 2013%12A31H 2012 12A31H DNPERR TEBABE
Valuation
31 December 31 December Fair value techniques and
Financial assets 2013 2012 hierarchy key inputs
) FHEEER BB LA REB F148 VE R T 5 PR
ENTES R ETRAES EHRAES BEAE
BE(Mi5E26) 7,387,000/ 7T 3,252,000 70
REBLASN
ETRAES
8,689,000/ T
Held for trading Listed equity Listed equity Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
non-derivative  securities securities an active market
financial assets  outside Hong in Hong Kong:
(Note 26) Kong: HKS3,252,000
HK$7,387,000 Outside
Hong Kong:
HK$8,689,000
2) LETAHEE REBLASN BB LASN F148 i PR T 3% PR
& (MisE23) EMRAFES ETRAES BAE
142,453,000/ 7T 123,586,000/ 7T
Listed available- Listed equity Listed equity Level 1 Quoted bid prices
for-sale securities securities in an active market
investment outside Hong Kong: outside Hong Kong:
(Note 23) HK$142,453,000 HKS$123,586,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

5. @I A(E) 5. Financial Instruments (Continued)
() ADAFEFE(E) (c) Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

2013F12A31H
31 December 2013

F18 F258 E3W st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHERT THET THERT FTER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RAFETAEZE  Financial assets at
NemEE fair value through
profit or loss
HIEEERA Investments held for trading 7,387 = = 7,387
HEERE Available-for-sale
investment
ERRAES Listed equity securities 142,453 - = 142,453
fBEr Total 149,840 - - 149,840
20128 12A31H
31 December 2012
148 F24E 348 et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BRAFETAER  Financial assets at
NeEmEE fair value through
profit or loss
BIEEEIRE Investments held for trading 11,941 = = 11,941
AHHERE Available-for-sale
investment
EmlRAES Listed equity securities 123,586 = = 123,586
4Bzt Total 135,527 - - 135,527
8 & AN AR SR 1 FE R 5B 2 There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in both
B2 ERER o years.
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HZE2013F 12831 BILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

6.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, several subsidiaries
of the Company are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission and are required to comply with certain
minimum capital requirements according to the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Management monitors the
Group's liquid capital to ensure meet the minimum liquid capital
requirement in accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. These subsidiaries were
disposed in November 2012.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

6. ZcEMREE(E) 6. Capital Risk Management (Continued)
HZE20B3F12A3BILEFE - A& H During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's strategy,
o ,\@Z?ZO 2FN2ANBIEFE which was unchanged from that of the year ended 31 December
HERERTE  BERNAELRER 2012, is to maintain a gearing ratio within 30%. The gearing ratios
TE30%A) © FA20134F K 20124F12 H31H as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as follows:
WERBELENT ¢

2013 2012

FET FAT

HK$’000 HKS'000

BEBE Total borrowings 301,076 317,102
EmiaE Total equity 2,152,962 1,769,514
BEABELE Gearing ratio 14.0% 17.9%

7. WA 7. Revenue
REEXZENFCBEERED B The Group is principally engaged in magnesium product business,
AR TS IR AT TS o AN E fertiliser business and metallurgical flux business. During the
REE2012F128318 L FERAE Hj year ended 31 December 2012, the Group disposed its financial
EHECRRBER - AEBERBER services business. An analysis of the Group’s revenue, for both
BIEREZEBRNFEANZWADHT ZZD continuing and discontinued operations, for the year is as follows:
T

2013 2012
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RHEKEER Continuing operations

HESBHEER Sales of magnesium products 547,366 379,932
HEREERER Sales of fertiliser products 1,028,068 802,464
75 R A A 75 2 Sales of metallurgical flux products 64,857 60,534
1,640,291 1,242,930

DRIEREER Discontinued operation
RIS FARES Provision of financial services - 11,061

114 201355
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8.
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HZE2013F 12831 HIEFE -

Segment Information

Information reported to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the operating divisions. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

- Magnesium product business

Fertiliser business

Metallurgical flux business
- Financial services business

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group disposed
its financial services business.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is
presented below.

Segment Revenue and Results
The following is an analysis of the Group'’s revenue and results by

reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

FEREER
Continuing operations

EREERER BEEREH RBAEER ait

Magnesium Metallurgical

product Fertiliser flux
business business business Total
TR TiEn THER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHRA Segment revenue 547,366 1,028,068 76,149 1,651,583
AHERA Inter-segment revenue - - (11,292) (11,292)
RENFEEHEA Revenue from external customers 547,366 1,028,068 64,857 1,640,291
NHEE Segment results 183,219 245,791 9,318 438,328
AR Other income and gains 11,782
41 ROTBER Central administrative costs (57,080)
BBER Finance costs (21,441)
BRETEHANRA Profit before income tax 371,589
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8. EERE) Segment Information (Continued)
DEBAREE(E) Segment Revenue and Results (Continued)
HE2012F12A318ILFE - For the year ended 31 December 2012:

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
SBUA Segment revente 379932 802,464 812 124558 M 12561
DEEMA Inter-segment revenue = = (2598) (259) @) (2,640)
RANPEEHMA  Revenue from external customers 379932 802,464 60534 1242930 11,061 1253991
R E Segment results 125213 148637 9398 283,48 (6142 277,106
R A Rz Other income and gains 13472 77 21,44
PRTRER Central administrative costs (48,084) (13,060) (61,144)
HBER Finance costs (20363) - (20363)
BRETEH AN/ (BE) Profit/loss) before income tax 28273 (11430) 216843
EXZ2H2z25HBRA - TIRTINEBE Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
FREAZBA - pEERZXZHEA from external customers. Inter-segment transactions are entered
FEAER]N o into at arm’s length.
AHRESE T RREASREG G The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
KRR o »EPEETRRILE S ERH as the Group's accounting policies. Segment results represent
RITHER(BEESFHH - Ak the results from each segment without allocation of central
AR - BB ER KRG %Rﬁfﬁﬁ) administrative costs including directors’ emoluments, other
BRATEDWBZEE - WRRAEE income and gains, finance costs and income tax expense. This is
L/;&%%iﬁil’/{t\/\ﬁgaﬁ/ﬁﬁil:'fﬁ the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
DERIEZF © the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
20135 F 4
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8. oHERGE) 8. Segment Information (Continued)
TR EERERE Segment Assets and Liabilities
EAZOB'EE 2H31H ﬁ-}gﬁ%&g% The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013
MEBEZBIFEERIIRES 2 E and capital expenditure for the year then ended by reportable
AT : segments are as follows:
BEEERY
Continuing operations
EEEREY BXERXE RELHEE ARE KB CHI
Magnesium Metallurgical
product Fertiliser flux Total
business business business segments  Unallocated Total
TARL TAT THAT THET THT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PHEE Segment assets 941,909 442,308 726,383 2,110,600 729,622 2,840,222
PHAR Segment liabilties 160,757 202,445 209,819 573,021 114,239 687,260
AEFRBEE  Additions to non-current
assets 307,484 57,740 47,843 413,067 1,981 415,048
R012F12A3B 2 HEERAEE The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012
MEZEZBEFEZAIREDH & and capital expenditure for the year then ended by reportable
REZHAT ¢ segments are as follows:
RBEEER BRIHEEEHK
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
cREERER  REEHRE  RARERR  cRBEER  A¥ed AR At
Magnesium Metallurgical Financial
product Fertiliser flux services Total
business business business business segments Unallocated Total
TAT AL T TAT TAT TAL AT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
NHEE Segment assets 560,685 315262 680,719 = 1,556,666 806,772 2363438
PHEE Segment liabiites 87,967 146,589 144511 - 379,067 214857 593924
AEETHEE  Additonsto
non-current assets 259,189 97,347 5269 45 361,850 13,555 375405
REKE RS R LK S HEHE For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
BRZBR: allocating resources between segments:
= ﬁ?ﬁiﬁ@% e ﬁﬁ?éﬁ% - #R1T = all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
T Ae RERBEIHEE A than investment properties, intangible assets, deposits
H A2 P s prop . g , dep
<\ﬁﬂy:%ﬁ;fﬁ ﬁ% &%@ with banks, cash and cash equivalents and other assets
ER @%&?ﬁﬂ;\@ﬁﬁwﬁﬂ for corporate use which including property, plant and
IE?lL PrEEEADBEEEA R equipment and other receivables; and
(=2 ELB ; &
- @ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ,z%%;&;\‘r@ﬁgﬁ - all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
?\E?\h TRREHDEER than borrowings for corporate use and other payables.
#& =2 ﬁB ©
EXRAXOREHYE - BELEED Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and
RNE  XNENHERBNBEY equipment, payment for acquisition of patents and deposits for
% B Rk EEHIEE (2012F  BE acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2012: additions
MEMYE - BEMREHRE) - to investment properties and property, plant and equipment).
BREETYE - BEMRBIERTR Except for the additions to certain property, plant and equipment
BRBI IRERAXEDERE for administrative purposes, all the capital expenditure was
Pan=i allocated to segments.
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8. EER(E) 8. Segment Information (Continued)
Hith 7y &R Other Segment Information
REZE2013F 128318 EFE - For the year ended 31 December 2013:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ BERREM  Depreciation of property, plant and
RENERE equipment and investment properties 9,183 36,960 9,484 3911 59,538
TIERE  FEER  Amortsation of land use rights,
BREESRE mining rights and intangible assets 1,984 358 13,282 184 15,808
HEME  BERRMEE (Gain)loss on disposal of property,
(%) /i plant and equipment (102) - 274 82 254
BIEBERENDZER Realised and unrealsed loss on investments
FEBER held for trading - - - 1313 1,313
FERER Income tax expense 37,931 55,870 542 113 94,456
REZE2012F 12831 ALEFE ¢ For the year ended 31 December 2012:
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
% BERREN  Depreciation of property, plant and
RENFHE equipment and investment properties 5910 33,703 6,698 4% 305 4994
THRAIE  KEER  Amortisation of and use ights,
B AERS mining rights and ntangfble assets 1647 360 13532 54 181 15,774
LENE  BER (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
FEMURE)/BE  plntand equipment = 138 22) 3 = 119
RREEBRENFSHA Interest income from
held-to-maturity investment - - - (697) - (697)
FEBEREMFSMA Interestincome from investments
held for trading - - - (1119 - (1119
RIEBERENEEER  Realised and unrealised
AERMR gain on investments held for trading - - - (3222) (1457) (4679
ARG Allowance for doubtful debts - - - 713 1231 1944
FEHRS Income tax expense 26638 20220 1126 275 = 48759
20135 F 5
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8.

FEHER (&) 8. Segment Information (Continued)
FTEERRBBHBA Revenue from Major Products and Services
REEFZERRRBHRALT The Group's revenue from its major products and services were as
follows:
2013 2012
FExT FABT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BEQSEER Continuing operations
CEHEEmD Magnesium products:
wmTEES Rare earth magnesium alloys 358,975 196,317
HEBEES Basic magnesium products 166,162 167,634
HAh, Others 22,229 15,981
547,366 379,932
BEPERESR : Fertilisers products:
Ba OR) e Compound fertilisers 749,916 614,400
B HARRE R Organic fertilisers 275,468 174,452
HAh, Others 2,684 13,612
1,028,068 802,464
JoR i oA 75 2 Metallurgical flux products 64,857 60,534
1,640,291 1,242,930
ERIEREER Discontinued operation
& BARTE Financial services - 11,061
1,640,291 1,253,991
i EE R Geographical Information

RARAEENEB2HLNPE
B W HEARKEZ IR P WA TR
RHE/ B RIEE2IE &

#t o
FEREFEHR

A E20134F &20126F12 8318 1k
FETEHTME-—RFEZHERB
NEBBUTA Z10% @ B ik 5 7

TBEPHNERZT -

No geographical information is presented as all of the Group's
businesses are carried out in the PRC/Hong Kong and the Group's
revenue from external customers is in the PRC/Hong Kong.

Information about Major Customers

No information about major customers is presented as no single
customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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9. HtbWAKWKE

9. Other Income and Gains

BEREEE Continuing operations
HE WA Rental income 5,241 4,633
FLBUA - Interest income:

—RITHER — bank deposits 5,157 6,104
AR B A Dividend income 417 417
FIERA Sundry income 967 867

11,782 12,015
ERIEREEL Discontinued operation
BN Interest income:

—RITER - bank deposits - 7

— BRI RE — held-to-maturity investment - 697

—RBEEEKRE — investments held for trading - 1,119

—itEE - custodian - 276

—-REZE - margin - 44
A& B WA Dividend income - 282
BEEKE S Reversal of impairment loss on

FIERE trade receivables - 2,068
BIEEBERER Realised gain on investments held for

B2 e trading - 1177
FEBEEREAR Unrealised gain on investments held for

KRBT S trading - 2,045
FETEWA Sundry income - 57

= 7,772
10. FMBEH 10. Finance Costs

BEREER Continuing operations
ARSFREZHEEY Interest on borrowings wholly
BERNFE repayable within 5 years 21,441 20,363
201353
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11. FBHEX
REeEZEEMEE K FZRA
B (5t ) B FS T B 2 SEaE

Income Tax Expense

The amount of income tax expense charged/(credited) to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents:

ENERR IR Current tax
—BBMEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax - - - (12) - (12)
—FREMEMERH - PRC Enterprise Income Tax 97,562 50,847 = 12 97,562 50,859
BIEHA Deferred taxation (3,106) (2,863) - 275~ (3,106) (2,588)
94,456 47,984 = 275 94,456 48,259
(a) E?ﬁ*ﬂ%ﬁ \ (a) Hong Kong Profits Tax
?\%%'JH%RE&%ZEZOBEF Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
2012%13)5131 EUJZ%EZﬁﬁ' estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
FEFRTE A 216.5%=1H © December 2013 and 2012.
(b) ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ \ (b) The PRC Enterprise Income Tax
FEIBEMEH T IREE2013 The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% on
FR201NFNANALEFE 2 the estimated assessable profits arising in the PRC for the

ETERPUE N 2 25%t H ©

years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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11. FBHAX(E) 11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

() IBINRIEH (c) Overseas Income Tax
RATDBERESFHERFE The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
RASESTMKLAERR as an exempted company with limited liability under
BRAF] - WL R P AN the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly,
FEHEMEN - AARINE is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The
BREZEESKR M ARTY Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin
BEEBEXHSEBEEER Islands were incorporated under the International
ALEFEMACAL - WA AR Business Companies Act of the British Virgin Islands and,
EEBRZESHEN - are exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.

N2 B ) BR BT 15 4 Bl 1) B2 A The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs
B 1 R VIR ZE R K 25% At B from the theoretical amount that would arise using a
HIETREFER Z R T ¢ tax rate of 25%, the standard income tax rate of the PRC
enterprises, as follows:
2013 2012
FTHEx TAT
HK$’000 % HKS$'000 %
B FTETH RS A (B518)  Profit/(loss) before income tax
i - Continuing operations 371,589 228,273
— BRI ~ Discontinued operation = (11,430)
371,589 216,843
RIER TSR E25% Tax charge at applicable
(20124F = 25%) income tax rate of 25%
STEEBIE (2012: 25%) 92,897 25.0 54,211 250
REMADEERSEH  Effect of different tax rates
)= RGPS of subsidiaries operating
FE in other jurisdictions (5,385) (1.4) (6,165) 2.8)
BARTRBAZ Tax effect of income not
BEE taxable for tax purpose (6,576) (1.8) (8,159) (3.8)
FAF 2 HiBAS 2 Taxeffect of expenses not
M2 deductible for tax purpose 15,001 4.0 15454 7.1
SR AR Over-provision of tax in
prior year (139) 0.0 (4,625) (A))
EREARERZ Utilisation of previous
WS EE unrecognised tax losses (6,104) (1.6) (10,114) 4.7)
EEA 2 A IERERE  Tax effect of estimated tax
RFiTE 2 losses not recognised 4,762 1.2 7,657 3.5

FTis R Income tax expense 94,456 25.4 48,259 222

2013F 3R
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11. FBHAX(E) 11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
2013F 128318 KEBRERM As at 31 December 2013, the Group has unrecognised tax losses
B 5 18 £9101,141,0000 TT(20124 of approximately HK$101,141,000 (2012: HK$108,377,000), which
108,377,000/ 7T ) 7] 4% 82 DA I 85 R 2R fE can be carried forward to offset future taxable profit. Tax losses
RRUR A o 476,772,000 70 (20124 of approximately HK$76,772,000 (2012: HK$60,429,000) will expire
60,429,000/ 7T ) 2 BB E 181§ 70 B BL1% after five years from the year of assessment they relate to while
ERB A HFEERTAFRIIE tax losses of approximately HK$24,369,000 (2012: HK$47,948,000)
i1 4924,369,00075 7T, (20124F © 47,948,000 can be carried forward indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit of
/ETE)ZHIEEHTE\E‘J—I?’J«X (R HR 4% such tax losses has not been recognised as it is not considered
o HNRA B2 EREEF RS probable that future taxable profit will be available to utilise the
AR g ERE AR IEEELEE - & unused tax losses.
ZERIABE 2 BEER IH W S W AR FE
R o
12. FREF 12. Profit for the Year
RELEEB 2FANFNEMNER/ Profit for the year from continuing operations has been arrived at
(ER)TIER : after charging/(crediting):
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ITERF® Wages and salaries 70,713 54,512
RYEENEE 2 BRE Share options granted to directors and
employees 4,760 1,819
TR TR NG S Payment to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,749 1,594
BB TR Total staff costs

(BHEESEHH) (including directors’ emoluments) 77,222 57,925
1% 5 A 5 B Auditors’ remuneration 1,024 1,350
e N g Depreciation and amortisation 75,346 65,236
HEMZE  BER Loss on disposal of property,

B R plant and equipment 254 116
HEEBREMEZE W Realised gain on investments held for trading (214) (©4)
H{’EEE&QE’]?&“L@%}E\/ Unrealised loss/(gain) on investments

(Yezs) held for trading 1,527 (1,393)
FEERAER AT H Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1,014,389 785,576
T RIEFZ Operating lease rentals in respect of

KERNBAE land and buildings 2,458 2,070

ERIMEEER 2 FNEBREEHGR T Loss for the year from discontinued operation has been arrived at

HIEB R - after charging:
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
2 CIEA Auditors’ remuneration - _
e RHEH Depreciation and amortisation - 480
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FREN (&)

PERANEOEGIRTR - AEEAEFTE
1B B M — H i BT & 0t e R IR G B 4t
B AT RIBRN TR KE 8 - RIBE
WENNHRE  AEEZERFSH
14%M ezt BIER  XEBRFEHRRZ
Sh REEBEARERNEEER
RKRRA 2 BAE o 2R BT & P
RAEIAERKESNENEZEE
-

AEBEAEBHAREERHBE S
gl mESHBEN EEERTE - B
BAUETEAEE - RIFBBESTE - K
SEREBEBHESESAREARFEA
B 0% R B IR A Z5%i% A mZat
SR - B2012F6 A1B#E - REEK
BEHR ERRE A1,2508 7T ©

HZ20B3FENRANBAEEE AL
MERZEEZSTEEENERBED
1,749,0007 7T(20124F : 1,594,000/ JT ) °
R2013812A318 » NEEIW EEFE
BERDE YR AR D A EE AR R
R R (20124 « THT) ©

CEETBRAEBREEH

B & B = B A =

12.
BREE -
(a)
13. EE
(a)
20135 F 3R

EEEHM
HZE2013F12A31BIEFES

12.

13.

Profit for the Year (Continued)

note:

(a)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group contributes
to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its employees in the PRC, which
is a defined contribution plan. The Group contributes approximately
14% of the employees’ salary as specified by the local government, and
the Group has no future obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or postretirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire pension obligations
to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the MPF
Scheme, a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong Kong
employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Since 1 June 2012, both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
the Group's contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$1,749,000 (2012: HK$1,594,000). As at 31 December
2013, the Group was not entitled to any forfeited contributions to reduce
the Group's future contributions (2012: HKSNil).

Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’
Emoluments and Individuals with Highest
Emoluments

(a)

Directors’ Emoluments
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31

BEE2HMEFAT ¢ December 2013 is set below:
Exihaze X
ok #¢  AREE  HEER &it
Employer’s
contribution
Share  to pension
ESHE Name of director Fees Salaries options scheme Total
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HTEERTHAS Executive director and CEO
WX E Chi Wen Fu - 1,108 124 15 1,247
HITES Executive directors
RLE"S Shum Sai Chit - 560 93 15 668
MBS Chi Bi Fen - 560 93 15 668
BE)I Yang Yuchuan' - 325 - 8 333
FHTES Non-executive director
PBEE Guo Mengyong 33 - 30 - 63
BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors
BRX Kwong Ping Man 73 = 30 = 103
Gk Liu Hoi Keung 53 - 30 - 83
B Sheng Hong 33 - 30 - 63
192 2,553 430 53 3,228
L R2013F7A1HEZE 1 Appointed on 1 July 2013

AR LR EIEA A R A A



13.

EE - TETHRABEBR{EEH 13. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’

MReESHMAL(E)

(a) EEEHM(E) (a)
HE012FN2ANALEES
EEZHMEIWT

Emoluments and Individuals with Highest
Emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31

December 2012 is set below:

HTEERTHAS Executive director and CEO

WX = Chi Wen Fu - 884 218 14 1,116

YTES Executive directors

it Shum Sai Chit = 455 163 14 632

BB Chi Bi Fen - 455 163 3 621

FHTES Non-executive director

PRE Guo Mengyong 30 = 55 - 85

BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors

Bmx Kwong Ping Man 70 - 55 - 125

B Liu Hoi Keung 50 - 55 - 105

Bt Sheng Hong 30 - 55 = 85
180 1,794 764 31 2,769
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13. B FETHABRESEH 13. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’
B & S H A £ (3&) Emoluments and Individuals with Highest
Emoluments (Continued)
(b) SUERSFMAL (b) Five Highest Paid Individuals
RER - A& ES &= 5 The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
AT BIEIAL(20125F : 14L) A in the Group for the year included 3 (2012: 1) directors of
NEIES FHAZEEMEND the Company whose directors’ emoluments are disclosed
MER EXIKREE - FRENT in the above analysis. The emoluments payable to the
RN 2200 (20126F 41 ) A * rest 2 (2012: 4) individuals during the year are as follows:
ZHemT
2013 2012
FTER FAT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HEAR#HE - BARE - Basic salaries, share options,
Hin2ah M EYH = other allowances and benefits in kind 1,762 10,619
RHREER—TH Pension costs-defined contribution plan
HRET S 30 43
1,792 10,662
27 (20124F 467 ) S = 5 A The emoluments of the 2 (2012: 4) individuals with the
ATHE BRI T HE : highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
2013 2012
Z 21,000,000/ 7T Nil = HKS$1,000,000 2 1
1,000,001 7L £2,000,000/7C  HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 - 2
2,000,001 7LE3,000000 7T HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 - -
3,000,001 7LE4,000000 7T  HK$3,000,001 - HK$4,000,000 - -
4,000,001 7C%5,0000007C  HK$4,000,001 - HK$5,000,000 - -
5,000,001 756,000,000/ 7T HKS5,000,001 - HK$6,000,000 - -
6,000,00178 70 E7,000,000/87C  HK$6,000,001 — HK$7,000,000 - 1
2 4
(c) & =20134F K2012912831H (c) During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
WEFE - ANEEWE R E A no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
NAEEBRNESEHFMA L directors of the Company and the five highest paid
S E e R INAZ B =k individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
ARG BRI RE) - SEREE Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
B (E o
(d) & =20134F %2012 12H31H (d) During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
WEFE I FEA—ER emoluments paid by the Group to any of the senior
EREEZMeHBR E@HE management all are within the band: Nil — HK$1,000,000.
21,000,000 7T °
2013F 3R
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14.

ERIEREEK
R2012F11A298 » KRR EZEN B
NAHLERE N ERERITER AR E—
EBYE=HEI L EEHEALERS
HERSRMIERBBR AR REWEA
B2 AR AR - RHNRER2013
F2H268 & E A73141,9878 7T
EEEMNFIBRM 7R E -

ERUEEEXH 2 BRDREAERE
REMEHKRSERMFEAERERER
AR - FIEESIT

14.

Discontinued Operation

On 29 November 2012, Century Sunshine Ecological Technology
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose of 100% equity interest in Sunshine Partners Financial
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, for a consideration as
determined on 26 February 2013 at HK$73,141,987. Details of the
disposal are disclosed in Note 37.

The loss from the discontinued operation which has been
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statements of
cash flows are set out below:

2012
T
HK$'000
ERLEREXE2HRER Loss for the period from discontinued operation
WA Revenue 11,061
H AU R e Other income and gains 7,772
F sz Expenses (28,299)
TSR ATEE Loss before income tax (9,466)
FriSfifAx Income tax expense (275)
(9,741)
HEXKER Loss on disposal of operation (1,964)
BRI B T 2 BN Loss for the period from discontinued
E518 operation (11,705)
T ATEIGERERE Loss for the period attributable to:
ViN/NEIEZ ¥ =N Owners of the Company (8,373)
eI i Non-controlling interests (3,332)
(11,705)
CRLIREERCHERE Cash flows from discontinued operation
REFHMEE RS Net cash outflows from
T FEE operating activities (12,924)
BREEBMEEZ RS Net cash inflows from
MAFEE investing activities 10,072
BEEHMEEC RS Net cash inflows from
AR financing activities 4,940
WERAFEE Net cash inflows 2,088
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15. BRE 15. Dividend
2013 2012
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BeR AR HARY B A L@AY  Proposed final dividend of 2.00 HK cents
2.007811l (2012: 1.03 HK cents) per ordinary share
(20124F = 1.037l1) 55,115 26,207
IR KRR E A FRERARND T A The proposed final dividend is to be approved by the
20145428 BT RFBFKRE shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
(M2014EFERREFEFERE ) A - §& to be held on 28 April 2014 ("2014 AGM"). Shareholders will be
BR 5 B 12 DA IR 0 H9 2 =X U B R ER given the option to receive the final dividend in new shares in
BRENRERE - ZUARRKELHA lieu of cash. This scrip dividend arrangement is subject to: (1) the
E (2014 ERREFEE RS FitE approval of proposed final dividend at 2014 AGM; and (2) the
EHEAIKS 0 RQEEXZFTHLERE Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal
PARRA B ﬁ?}kﬁ—y%?‘éﬁZ%ﬁﬂy\{ﬁtm in the new shares to be issued pursuant thereto. These financial
REE - WS BHRERIT A MR IE statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
’E1—J-HX/\;,\ °
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRNERBDIKKIME :  Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
2012F R RIEMRIARE 2012 final dividend declared and
BEREER1.03E paid 1.03 HK cents (2011: 0.35 HK
(20114 = 0.35%81L) cents) per ordinary share 26,280 9,026
201354 H » 7,100,0000% f% 15 A 17 {5 In April 2013, 7,100,000 shares were issued pursuant to the
FERR M 1T - T R RELE20125F exercise of share options before the record date of the fina
12A31 8 IEFE 2 KRR S50 8% H 5 dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012, ie. 21 May
(BP201358218) - Ak kT 2K 2013. As such, final dividend paid was more than the proposed
HIRR B Z R E E2012F12A8318 I F dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
[EHRAR S,
16. BREF 16. Earnings Per Share
(@ E=XF (a) Basic
BRERBNEBERDTHE Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
e N profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
ﬁAF’&“{EmTJ” BTL/(EWE% weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
1TE BRI T 8E during the year.
2013F 3R
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16.

BREF (&) 16. Earnings Per Share (Continued)
(a) EX(E) (a) Basic (Continued)
BEROHRILAZEER Continuing and Discontinued Operations
2013 2012
RATEB AR Profit attributable to owners of
(F#%7T) the Company (HK$'000) 230,215 130,312
23T ERAR INAE F 8 Weighted average number of
(Fhx) ordinary shares in issue ('000) 2,570,488 2,564,779
BIRERAF Basic earnings per share
(&) (HK cents per share) 8.96 5.08
B EERK Continuing Operations
2013 2012
RN TR AEAG & T Profit attributable to owners of
(F&T) the Company (HK$'000) 230,215 138,685
BETE RN FIIE Weighted average number of
(F1&) ordinary shares in issue ('000) 2,570,488 2,564,779
FRERZET Basic earnings per share
(BREL) (HK cents per share) 8.96 541
ERIEEXE Discontinued Operation
2013 2012
ANAEHEE AFEEEIE  Loss attributable to owners of
(F&7T) the Company (HK$'000) - (8,373)
DEITERARINE I8 Weighted average number of
(Fh%) ordinary shares in issue ('000) 2,570,488 2,564,779
FRREXREE Basic loss per share
(=B (HK cents per share) = 0.33
(b) #E (b) Diluted

BRESENERREBIRMAE
BEEBEE AR  ARER
BITEBRBRINEFOEGE -
AREE—HREFTEELER
B - RBRHE - BURERIEM = -
AN AR 1) AR 17 {68 8 A A P BfY
ZRBEERE FEEERQ
FECARREFERZ B F
VG ERETE)ERARNK
MEA - & Xl Et B AR
MEA - BRRITEBRER
PREETTROR M BB fE—LL#R

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The Company has one category of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the
share options, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average market price of the
Company'’s shares during the year) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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16. BREF (&) 16. Earnings Per Share (Continued)
(b) #H(E) (b) Diluted (Continued)
2013
KRAFIHEAE ABMET]  Profit attributable to owners of the Company
(T#T) (HK$'000) 230,215
B 31T TR N I8 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(Fh%) ('000) 2,570,488
FLEBMREER FAEE (FR%Y) Adjustment for share options ('000) 78,849
BREE RN LR Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
niETEHE(FR) diluted earnings per share (‘000) 2,649,337
RS R (FREN)  Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) 8.69
B ZE2012F12A31BIEFE - For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company’s
FRPAZN A B B 1) AR 1T 150 B AR e outstanding share options were not included in the
B REESEWE - KA FIH calculation of diluted earnings per share because the
RITEEEEAREN REFT AT effects of the Company's outstanding share options were
EERMNES - anti-dilutive.
17. T HERRE 17. Land Use Rights
REBR T ERAES 2 ERERN The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
KERENF AREFES A operating lease payments and their net carrying values are
T analysed as follows:
2013 2012
FExT FHAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHE - BIESIERFA © Inthe PRC held on:

HRHAE A9 Medium term leases 151,488 150,474
mENE E Current assets 3,485 3,385
IEMENEE Non-current assets 148,003 147,089

151,488 150,474
MR2013F12A31H ' REEAY As at 31 December 2013, land use rights with a carrying amount
146,815,000/ 70 (20124F : 145,806,000 of approximately HK$146,815,000 (2012: HK$145,806,000) have
BIT) 2 THMEREEERRITEE been pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 30).
R (ffF5E30)
2013F 3R
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18. ¥ - MEREE 18. Property, Plant and Equipment
(@ A&KH (@) The Group

HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS 000

S cost
R012%1818 As at 1 January 2012 143314 5116 220,000 7939 7,506 1028 71763 480,666
AE Additions 1374 - 153,501 1124 - - 213406 375405
b Transfers 124 - 66,715 - - - (66,839 -
ERERENE Transfers to investment properties

(Miztro) (Note 19) - - - - - - (1355) (1355)
frt:3 Disposals = = ) (86) = (177) = (3,036)
HERBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - (566) - (112) - - - (1678)
BN HE Exchange alignment 2814 48 6793 164 125 17 2955 13,29
R126128318 Asat 31 December 2012

RW1EIRIA and 1 January 2013 153626 2978 444236 8029 7631 868 203,733 841,101
AE Additions - 848 12246 51 3190 - 332330 348,865
25 Transfers 5,260 - 715 - - - (50979) -
e Disposals - (303) (226) - (972) - - (1,521)
BN HR Exchange alignment 4715 678 14561 38 266 % 12610 33,004
R2013%12A31F  Asat 31 December 2013 163,601 24181 516,532 8,518 10,115 894 497,698 1,221,539
ZHERAE  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment

R01E1A1R Asat 1 January 2012 36358 2,707 106,012 5036 45M 205 - 174829
ERFE Charge for the year 2918 158 40 1677 1040 173 - 47087
HER Eliminated on disposal = = (2570) (76) = 87) - (2683)
HEHBAR Disposal of subsidiaries = (315) = (685) - - - (1,000)
A% Exchange alignment 76 48 2467 118 8 6 - 3808
R012E12A318 % Asat 31 December 2012

W3EIA1R and 1 January 2013 40002 2978 147030 6070 56% 347 - 0061
ERiE Charge for the year 3063 268 51,109 1085 930 175 - 56630
L ERHE Eliminated on disposal - (323) M) - (724) - - (1.069)
B AR Exchange alignment 1,266 678 5,561 204 146 14 - 7869
12013128318 Asat 31 December 2013 44,331 23,601 203,679 7,359 5,986 536 - 285,492
BEFE Net carrying values
R2013%128318  Asat 31 December 2013 119,270 580 312,853 1,159 4129 358 497,698 936,047
R0125128318  Asat 31 December 2012 113624 - 297,206 1959 1997 521 203,733 619,040
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18. ¥ - BMERRE(E) 18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
(@) FEE(E) (a) The Group (Continued)
st notes:
0} RERBFANRPE - (i) The buildings are situated in the PRC.
(ii) R20134F }2012812 8318 # (i) No interest was capitalised and included in construction-in-
EFBWENMERFALERTL progress as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. An analysis of
R BRERIR 2 construction-in-progress is as follows:
T
gF Buildings 137,447 93,241
BB Rk Plant and machinery 360,251 110,492
497,698 203,733
(iif) R2013F12A310 R A A (iif) As at 31 December 2013, buildings and plant and machinery
£#9165,546,000/870 (20124F with a carrying amount of approximately HK$165,546,000 (2012:
168414000/ 7T ) Z 18 F -« W& HK$168,414,000) have been pledged to secure bank borrowings
RBRBEERRITEE 2 HR (Note 30).
(FH=E30)
201353



18.

M~ BE K& (E) 18.

(b)

AR

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The Company

(b)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R Cost
R01251818  Asat 1 January 2012 303 927 - 1,250
NE Additions - - 125 125
#2012 124318 K& As at 31 December 2012

2013F1R1H and 1 January 2013 323 927 125 1,375
NE Additions 848 - 181 1,029
HE Disposals (323) = = 33)
20135128318 Asat 31 December 2013 848 927 306 2,081
EG N Accumulated depreciation
®2012%1A18 As at 1 January 2012 323 057 = 980
FRITE Charge for the year - 191 38 229
2012512318 Asat 31 December 2012 and

K2013F1A1H 1 January 2013 323 848 38 1,209
HERM Eliminated on disposal (323) - - (323)
FRME Charge for the year 268 79 4 388
72013128310  Asat 31 December 2013 268 927 79 1,274
REFE Net carrying values
12013F12H310 Asat 31 December 2013 580 - 227 807
20126128318 As at 31 December 2012 - 79 87 166
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18. ¥ - BMERRE(E) 18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
REFE2YE BEREE2EA The useful lives of property, plant and equipment adopted for the
FHAT - current year are as follows:

—&F MEAR — Buildings Over the lease terms

—MERE 2E5F — Leasehold improvements 210 5 years

— B Rt Bs 5Z 254 — Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years

—EMEIBAERE  5F — Furniture and office equipment 5 years

—RE 5% ~ Motor vehicles 5 years

— AR 5% - Ship 5 years

19. REYE 19. Investment Properties
FAT
HKS$'000
A Cost
7201251 A1H As at 1 January 2012 136,849
EREEEIEME8) Transfer from construction-in-progress (Note 18) 23,552
[ &, & Exchange alignment 2,884
20129124318 KX2013F1A18 As at 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 163,285
B 5, 3 =X Exchange alignment 4,884
7#R2013F12A831H As at 31 December 2013 168,169
ZiHE Accumulated depreciation
201241 18 As at 1 January 2012 19,910
FRHTE Charge for the year 2,855
B 5, 3 =X Exchange alignment 412
2012612 A31B KR201351 A1H As at 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 23,177
FERNTE Charge for the year 2,908
BE 5, R Exchange alignment 761
R2013512A31H As at 31 December 2013 26,846
BRERE Net carrying values
#2013F12H831H As at 31 December 2013 141,323
2012412 H318 As at 31 December 2012 140,108
201355
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19.

REW=(E)
REMEREEEMESE —H F—
HINE=MARENET -

PR EMENEERANABREE
1THE -

R2013F12A3H R @ B & A
141,323,00078 7T (20124F : 140,108000787C)
ZIEMECIERBITEE ZER -
(B5E30)

M2013F128318 » AEEREWE
Z A 1A 4 5146,463,0007 TT(2012
1 142,809,000 T ) ° & E A £ &K
SEMEEEZBY S ERGEME
H-REEEELEBILAERME
BERMEE ZHERSZED ZFGE
HER AEEZEEWHER2013F X
201212 A31 B 2 BREER B RE -

REE2013F12831BILEE - 8E
Y2 FTE A 2 A & A B5,241,00008
TE(20124F : 4,633,000/ 7T ) © 4 [@
MK 53.7%(20124F : 33%) ©

19.

Investment Properties (Continued)
The investment properties represent the buildings related to
phase one, phase two and phase three of the Yunxiao properties.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

As at 31 December 2013, investment properties with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$141,323,000 (2012: HK$140,108,000)
have been pledged to secure bank borrowings. (Note 30)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2013 was approximately HK$146,463,000 (2012:
HK$142,809,000). The valuation was performed by independent
qualified valuers not connected with the Group. Based on the
result of management’s assessment by making reference to the
valuation report issued by the independent qualified valuers,
there is no impairment on the carrying amount of the Group's
investment properties as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, rental income of
HK$5,241,000 (2012: HK$4,633,000) and rental yield of 3.7% (2012:
3.3%) were generated from the investment properties.

LR EMERREESE The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:
2013 2012
FExT FABT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
P - BIBESIERAE © Inthe PRC held on:
HERFR AV Medium term lease 141,323 140,108
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200 BLEE 20. Intangible Assets

A& Cost
101261 A1H Asat 1 January 2012 21451 3,602 500 80 1,166 9,030 35,889
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries (21451) - (500) - (1,166) - 23117)
i3S Exchange alignment - 2% - . . 6 87
720125121318 » As at 31 December 2012,

201351818K  1January 2013 and

20135128318 31 December 2013 - 3,687 - 80 - 9,092 12,859
ZHEERFE  Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

R012F1818 Asat 1 January 2012 45 3,662 - - 78 9030 12815
ERBE Amortised during the year - - - - 54 - 54
HEHBRT Disposal of subsidiaries (45) - - - (132) - (177)
B AR Exchange alignment = 25 = = = 62 87
120125124318 » As at 31 December 2012,

2013%1818K 1 January 2013 and

20135128318 31 December 2013 - 3,687 - - - 9,092 12,779
REEE Net carrying values
12013124310 As at 31 December 2013 - - - 80 - - 80
R2012612A318  As at 31 December 2012 - - - 80 - - 80
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

21.

PRuERE 21. Mining Rights
FHAT
HK$'000
5% Cost
201251 A1H As at 1 January 2012 582,853
PE 0 22 Exchange alignment 11,078
F2012F12A31H X20135F1 A 1H As at 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 593,931
P Exchange alignment 17,763
M2013F12A31H As at 31 December 2013 611,694
Rt #sE KR E Accumulated amortisation and impairment
201281 A1H As at 1 January 2012 9,884
FRITE Charge for the year 11,712
M 5, R B Exchange alignment 476
720129F12 A31H &2013F1H1H  As at 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 22,072
FERNTE Charge for the year 12,401
& H AR Exchange alignment 943
R2013%12A31H At at 31 December 2013 35,416
BREEE Net carrying values
7#A2013F12831H As at 31 December 2013 576,278
mM2012412H318 As at 31 December 2012 571,859
HERKRTPBIIAE R EEN A The balance represents two mining rights, the Serpentine mine
BERHEHFMNEA LT ZEEAEDN located in Donghai County of Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the
PRI ERERE - MM IBRBEY B RE dolomite mine located in Baishan City of Jilin Province, the PRC,
EREARSHN which are amortised by the production quantity over the ore
reserve.
20135124318 + BR TH {E 49515314000 As at 31 December 2013, mining rights with a carrying amount of
HIT(20124F - BHTT) 2 FHRIBEREC(E approximately HK$515,314,000 (2012: HKSNil) have been pledged

RIBITEEZER - (FFE30)

to secure bank borrowings. (Note 30)
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RMBARZREREWHE 22.
REFKIE

REERF Z2RE

Investments in and Amounts due from
Subsidiaries
Investments in Subsidiaries

RE - mAAE

FEETRAR

Investments, at cost:
Unlisted share capital

2,108

2,108

F2013F 128310 » NEEH
TEMBARZFENT :

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2013 are as follow:

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

BUTAZERERERRAA 78 AREMAAT  RPERERHE  SRRERKD - 8% ek 782% %6k
Baishan City Tianan Magnesium ~ The PRC, limited SREREER NRHE120037,7507

Resources Company Limited liabiity company Manufacturing and sale ~ Regstered and

of magnesium-related paid up capital of
products in the PRC RMB120,037,750

EEBREENRARAT  BE ARAMLR  REERAER 1000 - 100%  l00%  100% 100%
Century Sunshine Ecological Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in SREE0ET

Technology Limited fiabilty company Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1.00 each

HEGECEM) ERE  hE AREEAA  RERERR k&R - 00% 100%  100% 100%

ERATF The PR limited Investment holcing FRA30000000%7C
Century Sunshine (Zhangzhou) liability company inthe PRC Registered and paid up

Ecological Technology Limited capital HK$30000,000
TEREHRERARAA AR ARAMLE  RERRASR 10310R &R - B Seeh T8 6%

(BfR : RELEEARAT)  Hong Kong, Imited Investment holding ShmEET
(China Rare Earth Magnesium liablty company in Hong Kong 10,310 ordinary shares

Technology Holdings Limited of HKS1 each

(Formerly known as:

(China Magnesium Limited)
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22. RMBATIZKRENREWKE 22. Investments in and Amounts due from
NRFIE (1) Subsidiaries (Continued)
(a) RHBARZERE(E) (a) Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

I I
2013 2012 2013 012 2013 2012

THEENRRSARAT  fE ARAMLY  RPERERME M EgRRA - S B2 B% B2 8%
Jangsu Azureblue Technology  The PRC, limited RA(RIEERR ARE1000000007C
Development Company Limited  fabilty company EirElEEs Registered and paid

Manufacturing and sale of - up capital of
compoundand organic  RMB100,000,000
fertiisers in the PRC

THERILTARAD TEBREEAR  RPEEICHRNT ERRSRRA - - o13% 9% 913% 93k
Jangsu Longteng The PRC, lmited FRRE ARH141600007T
Petrochemical Limited liabiity company Processing, exploration  Reqistered and paid up
and sales of serpentine  capital of RMB14,160000
in the PRC
BEAGREHARAR  oE AREMNR  RRBERMELH ARRERRA - - os% 9%k 9S% 9ISk
The PRC lmited BREEHRERES  ARE300000007T
liabiity company Manufacturing and Regstered and paid up

sale of organic fertlisers  capital of RMB30000000
and sflicon magnesium
fertiisers in the PRC

Hit et notes:

O] RIREHKR - BEMNBARS ©) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities issued
] B BT (8 R E R 2 BT outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
BH o

@ BEALEGE D ENH S ) During the year ended 31 December 2012, Green Land Bio-
ARABI Rt EEH(ERE) Products Company Limited and tH42F5 5 (1852 ) RER K ERE
BEMBRERERARERE AR A F] were deregistered.
Z2012612831 8 IEFE R
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22. RMBATRIZKRENREWKE 22. Investments in and Amounts due from

NEIFRIE (&) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(@) RHBARZKRE(E) (a) Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
FffsE - (48) notes: (Continued)
TREFESARREFEREBEERY The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which,
B EKASBRFEES A H»HAA in the opinion of the directors, principal affected the results for the year

A EMBAR] - EFRRFIEAMM materially or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
BARMENSERBANIIR ° To give details of other subsidiaries, in the opinion of the directors, would
result in particulars of excessive length.

BEoh » RAREZERERERSEY In addition, the directors of the Company made an assessment as at the
MRS AR 1 257 R T 5 BAREAT date of initial application of HKFRS 12 and at the end of the reporting
FHh c BERAR - WEME A RERM period. In the opinion of the directors, there is no subsidiary that have
HEHAEBBEAN TR ER - non-controlling interest individually that are material to the Group
It WEM LS EMNE A RRKER and therefore no information is disclosed for these non-wholly owned
&R subsidiaries.
= =xJ . . N
(b) FEWKEARIRIE (b) Amounts due from Subsidiaries
FEUHIE A RSB AEER The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
R B EKIE o interest bearing and recoverable on demand.
23. AtHERE 23. Available-for-sale Investment
2013 2012
Fa% Fit5
HK$’000 HK$'000
& Listed investments
—BMN 2z FTRRAEES © - Equity securities listed in Australia,
ZAFEEE) at fair value (note) 142,453 123,586
HEBAMENDIITA Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MBEE Current assets 142,453 -
EREBEE Non-current assets = 123,586
142,453 123,586
B3 note:
AREFEFAZAIHEHEREAN BN EH2E Available-for-sale investment represents the Group's investment in listed securities
%1% & o RATTG Mobile Coupon Services Limited in Australia. The Group acquired 14,744,000 shares of TTG Mobile Coupon Services
([T1G)) Z & 15 12 3 M 3 % X 5 Fi(Australian Limited (‘TTG") prior to TTG's shares listed on Australian Securities Exchange. There
Securities Exchange) £ 1 A © 2N £ B Y BBTTG is a lock-up period for up to 24 months starting from the listing date of TTG on 27
14,744,0000% A% 15 = BTTGHR2012%11 8278 £ November 2012 for the Group to sell those shares. Mr. Yang Yuchuan, director of the
™ BEMEAAZRENRIASEBLEZSE Company, has been a non-executive director of TTG since December 2011.
B - AARERHENILEB201FI2ARE
TIGZ IEHITES ©
TR ABEEEZ A EEIRETRMIEZE Fair values of the investments in listed equity securities are determined by reference
ANBMEE ° to bid prices quoted in active markets.
BEEH£H2013F128318  AEBEZ Al H For the year ended 31 December 2013, the gross fair value gain in respect of the
EIRE 2 BN TE WX 718,867,000 7T (2012 Group's available-for-sale investment recognised in other comprehensive income
£ 1 123,557,000/ 70 ) E R EH Mt 2 E U A RFER © amounted to approximately HK$18,867,000 (2012: HK$123,557,000).
140 201355
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24. FE 24. Inventories
=Rl Raw materials 50,173 40,788
RS Work in progress 3,653 1,502
BURK R Finished goods 39,341 27,691
93,167 69,981
25. BESRHEHMEWTIE S 25. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and

EHRESE

Deposits

e E 5 50R Trade receivables 228,618 91,534 = -
EUEE Bills receivable 37,657 41,460 = =
A RIERIZ S Prepayments and deposits 27,952 22,795 799 1,486
E At UM OB Other receivables 7,223 16,224 = =
TR ISH#RE 2 Deposits placed with
T financial institutions 1,465 1,162 56 59
302,915 173,175 855 1,545
BEE - notes:
(@) R20135F12A31H B I R & & (a) As at 31 December 2013, bills receivable of approximately HK$37,657,000

(b)

37,657,000/ 7T (20124F : 41,460,000/ 7T )
R HRAE BAR N8 A (20124F = AEA)
WEE - A KRR AAREE
E o

HR2013F12A318 - EtEIRKEEE
BIEAR B AT U B E R 4) /41,500,000
JC(20124F : 1,959,000/ T, ) ° FA20124F12
A318 - HtESREREL SR
AEBZERERATREWNBEARZL
7,536,000/ TR (E  FiEIRRER
REE20135F12 831 B LEEZURER -

R2013%12A318 - EBERERERN
Hh M AT T (20124 ¢ 1,231,000
FETT) o 1B B R (B FE U K 18 B T 5 B IR
FE R IEAR - E5THEHT
BEUTIE % S RN GROE o

(2012: HK$41,460,000) will be matured within six months (2012: six
months) after the end of the reporting period. All the bills receivable are
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2013, other receivables mainly comprised of value-
added tax recoverable in the PRC of approximately HK$1,509,000 (2012:
HK$1,959,000). As at 31 December 2012, included in other receivables of
approximately HK$7,536,000 was consideration receivables for disposal
of Sunshine Partners Financial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. The
above mentioned consideration receivables were received during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, other receivables of HKSNil (2012: HK$1,231,000)
that are past due and impaired. The individual impaired receivables related
to receivables that were in financial difficulties and directors assessed that
the receivables were not expected to be recovered.
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25. BEZNHMEWNIE AKX 25. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and

BHRZEE(E) Deposits (Continued)
B 5 NEMEWGRIA - A RIE RIE Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits were
BT EEEGHE denominated in the following currencies
HEW YN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FTERT TAT TERT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
AR RMB 301,476 164,148 = =
BT HKS 1,439 9,027 855 1,545
302,915 173,175 855 1,545
20135 12A318 - REBEWE 5 As at 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of the trade
HIEMERESMREZAHZ)) 40 receivables of the Group presented based on the invoice date
K was as follows:
2013 2012
FERT TR
HK$'000 HKS$'000
30 AN Within 30 days 107,063 74,776
31260H 31 to 60 days 92,143 12,278
61290H 61 to 90 days 22,546 2,283
B0 H Over 90 days 6,866 2,197
228,618 91,534
REBBLTESREEZEEH—HBT The Group allows a credit period normally not more than 180
3B 180H (20124F : TiBiB1808 ) © days (2012: not more than 180 days) to its trade customers.
Sz 4 360 A K (B FY B 5 B W R IE S Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
T EAHE R R SR N RIZERIRFE - B related to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
BEMBARRENE 5 E W FIE 5 — recent history of default. Trade receivables that were past due
HEREFERIRSIEHENZER but not impaired related to a number of customers that have a
FAEM BmREEEZ=WEEE good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
RES AR AT ARE2IKE @ B management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
BAKE  SRERAWENERZ in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
S ELRERE  c NEEMER change in credit quality and the balance are still considered fully
S S ek padd (T (IHC D, o recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
142 2013455
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25.

26.

EZNRHMEWIE AR 25.
HEZES(E)
BHERREZE S EKGRIEERR D
W -

Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits (Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

RaH BHEERREE
&% BRRE 90H LA 9121800 181Z365H
Neither past
due nor Past due but not impaired
Total impaired <90 days 91-180 days  181-365 days
THAT FAT FTAT THAT FAT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
2013 228,618 221,752 - 5,434 1,432
2012 91,534 89,337 - 607 1,590
REREZEE Movement in the Allowance for Doubtful Debts
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
M1AR As at 1 January - 2,105
FLIE U E 5 5B FERR Impairment losses recognised on trade
VERIEY S| receivables = 713
P [O] B g Reversal of provision = (2,068)
RERRIEE S AEESXUWE  Amounts written off during the period
Z A as uncollectible - (133)
HEWB AR Disposal of subsidiaries = 617)
M12A318 As at 31 December = =

5B 5T 5 7 3R o A L B
B AR R R 5
REZREME TR - 5

EPEMEABBERE  wEER
R ERREEAR -

KEEEREA 26.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in credit quality of the trade receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to
the customer base being large and unrelated.

Investments Held for Trading

B2 EMRA Listed equity securities in
BE - BRATE Hong Kong, at fair value

== D o N Listed equity securities in
FH o BmATE the PRC, at fair value

REE NN

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FHET THT THET BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 3,252 - 3,252
7,387 8,689 - =
7,387 11,941 - 3,252

RHETI2ETSMBEAEBEE °

Fair values are determined with reference to quoted market bid
price.
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AR LR EIEA A R A A

27. BAOFERNEAEREREE 27. Deposits with Banks and Cash and Cash
1HH Equivalents
P2013F 128318 BIEAR BB =18 As at 31 December 2013, the fixed interest rate on deposits with
RA1E DR —%5 2 RI1T7175840,992,00078 banks of HK$40,992,000, (2012: HK$112,043,000), with maturity
JC(20124F © 112,043,000/ 7T ) 2 @& & over three months but less than one year, was ranging from 1.4%
FEF R B14E T31E (20124 : 332 t0 3.1% (2012: 3.3% to 4.4%) per annum. The deposits with banks
ZB44E) o RITFERAAREKEE - were denominated in RMB.
20135128318 - R 17 7 R 4 As at 31 December 2013, deposits with banks of amounting to
15,372,000/ 7T (20124 + B IT)EAE approximately HK$15,372,000 (2012: HKSNil) have been pledged
V=Y ANES it i to secure bills payables.
R2012F128318 | 1T F X 4 As at 31 December 2012, deposits with banks of amounting to
1094540008 TTEAE AR - 1B R —18 approximately HK$109,454,000 have been pledged for securing
ERERNRE - 2EC | PRITHE repayment of a borrowing. The pledged bank deposits were
HKEREE2013F12A31BIEFER released upon the settlement of relevant borrowing during the
REMBEEERRER - FEF2H year ended 31 December 2013. For more details, please refer to
Bt 8%30 © Note 30.
R|ER BEREZERRLEE R At the end of the reporting period, cash and cash equivalents
FELATIER - comprise of the followings:
rEE ENE|
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FExT FAT FExT FAT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHASRYT1F3X  Short-term bank deposits 318,969 235,028 = -
RITHRE R Cash at bank and
FHERE on hand 62,940 156,123 613 377
381,909 391,151 613 377
RBEEAR  BHERTERZERF At the end of the reporting period, the effective interest rate on
R A237/B(20124F : 123)8) : ZER= short-term bank deposits was 2.37% (2012: 1.23%); these deposits
K2 FHE ARG LR={EA (2012 have an average maturity of less than three months (2012: three
F:=[@A) - months).
201355
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27. BRAOGFERNMEAEREREE 27. Deposits with Banks and Cash and Cash

HA (&) Equivalents (Continued)
RekERBLEBRUATEES Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following
(R currencies:
rEE KAF
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET T FHET FHET
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AR RMB 376,037 382,168 - =
BT HKS 5,832 8,935 576 333
HAith Others 40 48 37 44
381,909 391,151 613 377
BIAARBAEBEZRS LSRR SE The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in
BIE L EES R EBEEEINE RMB out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control
EHIFTERPR © restrictions imposed by the government of the PRC.
28. EZRHMEMNKE 28. Trade and Other Payables
rEE NN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FAT FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEMZE SFIB  Trade payables 69,197 13,213 = =
JE 215 Bills payables 15,372 = = =
B RIA Receipts in advance 79,487 50,942 — -
FEET B K H A Accruals and other
&S FRIE payables 45,726 65,958 1,481 2,535
209,782 130,113 1,481 2,535
R2013F 128318 ' AEEENE S As at 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of trade payables of
FIBZERERSTREEAHES) W the Group presented based on the invoice date was as follows:
T
2013 2012
FET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
30B AR Within 30 days 41,518 10,115
31260H 31 to 60 days 21,514 1,894
61290H 61 to 90 days 4,878 11
#BiEo0H Over 90 days 1,287 1,193
69,197 13,213
YD 7 =ZEH 49082012 The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days (2012:
F :90R) c AEEZREH KRG ESE 90 days). The Group has financial risk management policies in
B AR B ENZERZEH place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
AELR o timeframe.
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29. BIEREHN 29. Financial Guarantee Contracts

BLIRITRLE M) Guarantee given to
ATHBRE certain subsidiaries for
REEER banking facilities 85 -
30. f&& 30. Borrowings

- Borrowings:
—F LR Within one year 301,076 317,102
—E LA HETREBBAS  More than one year but not exceeding
five years - =
301,076 317,102
W IIERENBEZIE  Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities (301,076) (317,102)
BE : Borrowings:
B (M 5Eakb) Secured (notes a & b) 301,076 317,102
AR R Unsecured - _
301,076 317,102

Bt 3E notes:

@) M20136F12A318 » SRITEEH S B @) As at 31 December 2013, the borrowings were secured by property,
#9165,546,00078 JT * 146,815,000 T * plant and equipment, land use rights, investment properties, mining
141,323,000% 7T * 515,314,000/ 7T R T8 right and deposit with bank of the Group amounting to approximately
TE(2012%F : 168,414,000/ 7T * 145,806,000 HK$165,546,000, HK$146,815,000, HK$141,323,000, HK$515,314,000 and
FBTT +140,108000/87T + TR 109454000 HKSNil (2012: HK$168,414,000, HK$145,806,000, HK$140,108,000, HKSNil
BILI)ZAEEYDE  BEERE = and HK$109,454,000) respectively. In addition, a director of the Company
HiEAAE - B BRIERERETE provide personnel guarantee to a bank for securing a borrowing of a
AEA o I KRB —BE MR subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$57,645,000.
TTREFAABRUER—EFARZLE
57,645,000 LIS E °
72013512 A318 » #9251,076,0007 7T As at 31 December 2013, the borrowings amounting to approximately
250,000,000 7T Z &£ E D Bl A A R HK$251,076,000 and HK$50,000,000 were denominated in RMB and HK$
RBHEEHE - R2013F 12831 B2 BB respectively. The effective interest rate at 31 December 2013 was 6.26%.

FR 6,26/ ©
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30.

BE (&)

feE - (&)

(b)

20065117+ AEEEERESFAR
(TEEReRmMAR DI ZERETH - 1B
BZERLH BEREEMARMAR
A& THI B QB H A R #120,000,000
TL( #9149,256,0008 L) 2 B ° Z B
IRF R K5 38E B - WHEMR2013F
NAE—REEE - B SRARR
2 ZERA TS HEEER : )
ARMEH Z R EER RODERARQ
7)244,578,0008% A% 17 ( B 3k 1E AR 17 4+ 48
(TR DIELAZE  ATERERA
RAR([EE| - BERRF)ES) -
BIEZERRE - NEBEESRIR2010
F12A318 ~ 2011F12A318 K20129F
NAJNBABEKRERMARFRARE
32,000,0007T ( #939,802,000/ 7T) * AR
#564,000,0007T ( 4979,603,000/% 75 ) & A
R #88,000,0007T ( #9109,454,0007% T )
ZIRITIERR o WO RAREFFRE
RIS E S E (B BENTE 2 #
H)MEEERATEAEERARTZ
REHRE - AARRAEEETET
24) - REEPEE)ERBHETZ
ETHHRL - 2012128318 4
147,323,000/ TR £ B A Rl BB
BRBEME - HE2013F12A318 1LF
- BEReRMARIZERC2EEE -

R20126F12A318 ' EARBEESRAR
17 A#9109,454,000/8 7T * {EAZIBE R
BRARE - BEUAREE IR
—FLAEH o B20126F12A31B 2K
RFIEA707E -

30.

Borrowings (Continued)
notes: (continued)

(b)

The Group entered into a loan arrangement with International Finance
Corporation ("IFC") in November 2006. Pursuant to the loan arrangement,
IFC had granted a loan of RMB120,000,000 (approximately HK$149,256,000)
to certain subsidiaries of the Company. The loan bears interest at 5.38%
per annum and is due for repayment in one bullet payment in November
2013. The loan granted by IFC was secured by (i) corporate guarantee
given by the Company; and (ii) pledges of 244,578,000 shares in the
Company, as adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision (“Share
Subdivision”), owned by Alpha Sino International Limited (“Alpha Sino”),
the controlling shareholder. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Group
is required to place bank deposits of RMB32,000,000 (approximately
HK$39,802,000), RMB64,000,000 (approximately HK$79,603,000) and
RMBB88,000,000 (approximately HK$109,454,000) for IFC as at 31 December
2010, 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012, respectively. In addition,
Mr. Chi Wen Fu, a director and controlling shareholder of the Company
(through his interest in Alpha Sino), has given an undertaking to IFC to
maintain a minimum level of shareholding in the Company. The Company
and the Group are complied with certain covenants, including, among
other things, certain financial covenants, under the loan arrangement.
As at 31 December 2012, approximately HK$147,323,000 of IFC loan was
classified under current liabilities. During the year ended 31 December
2013, the IFC loan was fully settled.

As at 31 December 2012, there were approximately HK$109,454,000
bank deposits placed for IFC for securing repayment of the IFC loan. The
borrowings are denominated in RMB, and have a maturity of less than 1
year. The effective interest rate at 31 December 2012 was 7.07%.
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30. BE(&) 30. Borrowings (Continued)
AEEEECEHERATERAT The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s borrowings are
as follows:
SREE D¥E
Carrying amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET TR FET THET
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
BE Borrowings 301,076 317,102 301,076 317,152
31. EZEWA 31. Deferred revenue
2013 2012
TR T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BURERE E B A BTEFK Government grants received
related to assets 24,980 -
BRESBEXZEE  ALUMRE In order to encourage the development of magnesium industry,
SBEREARE AT R2012FEEHE 1 Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources Co., Limited entered
BIFET S — D Wi - RiIEZHE - B into an agreement with the local government in 2012. Pursuant
HERAFREEAILT AL BHEES to the agreement, the local government agree to provide
BEANTIEHEIEER([EB)]) A financial assistance (the “Assistance”) to Baishan City Tianan
ZHAERBERIESWE  BEKSE Magnesium Resources Co., Limited to improve their production
EVEERE o technology and enhance the capacity of the property, plant and
equipment.
EHZE013FNANBILEE  AEFE During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has
W B 8 & Bh 49 /24,980,00078 7T (46 received part of the Assistance of approximately HK$24,980,000
2R A E#19,500,0007T) © (20124 - (equivalent to RMB19,500,000) (2012: HKSNIil).
THIT)
BT & Bh ek ak B eI IR » F]tEHER The Assistance received or which becomes receivables is initially
BRIEWAREBURTEEHE recognised as deferred revenue and subsequently recognised in
Y BEZATIHESE BESHRE profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset by way of as a
ZHEERER o reduced depreciation charge expense.
2013FF

AR LR EIEA A R A A



32. E#EFHIE 32. Deferred Taxation

FARGREMBRAKRBR BT The components of deferred tax balances recognised in the
TRAEARER GO REZEMT - consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

EEFIBEAE Deferred Tax Liabilities

RAH Asat 1 January - 194 112018 112269 17,504 17247 1,199 129 130,721 131,006
HENEAR Disposalofsubsidiaries - (185) - - - - - - - (189)
HAGABER  Cedied to the consolidated

Ht2ENER  statementof profitor loss and

other comprehensive income - O (2438 (237 (394) (386) (274) (1200 = (3,106) (2872

B A% Exchange alignment - -3 2106 514 643 30 B 38

R#12A318 As at 31 December - - 112813 12018 17,624 17504 955 1199 131452 1307210
BEEMIEEE Deferred Tax Assets

R1A1R As at 1 January - 18 - 574 - 592
B#xA18m&  Debited to the

Hi2m consolidated statement

W& MR of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income - (2) - (282) - (284)

HEMBAR  Release upon disposal of

By AR B subsidiaries - (16) - (292) - (308)
®12A318 As at 31 December = - - _ - _
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

33. B& 33. Share Capital
RHEE [} &
Number of Share
shares capital
FsE TFh& T
notes ‘000 HK$'000
EE Authorised:
20121 A18 » As at 1 January 2012,
20124124318 - 31 December 2012,
2013F1A1B K 1 January 2013 and
20134 12H318 - 31 December 2013:
SRAEBTT L Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
EBA([ it 1) (the "Shares”) 5,000,000 100,000
ERITRAR : Issued and fully paid:
R20124E1 B18 As at 1 January 2012 2,578,903 61,513
I BTG Cancellation of issued Shares © (34,560) (830)
A2012F12H31HK  As at 31 December 2012 and
2013%F181H 1 January 2013 2,544,343 60,683
WARRAR BETEIZ1T 2 Issue of Shares upon scrip dividend
avn scheme @) 36,273 726
TTEBERRAEI 87T 2 Issue of ordinary shares upon
TR exercise of share options (b) 20,055 401
7"2013F12A31H As at 31 December 2013 2,600,671 61,810

(@) AR B BIZER2013F5H278 2 2 BA
AR EETE - 48 T AR R 5201246 R
AR S AT LA B UMK S - B k72013
F6[288 LA B RR0618% 7T B 1T K o iR
36,272,535 Bk 17 © FTARMAD BEAE 1T 2 AR
DEBRSET - FBEFLHRRERN
20134F5 H27 B84 2 38K o

(b) REBZE2013F12831BEEEA * AA
AIRTTIE RS AR AR AFT(E B B AR 0.5/ T 3
17 &2 B A $£20,055,0008% B 15 © FE 15
B2BMTE36 o

(© REZE2012F 128318 IEFEER © AA
A LA 48 R (B 498,003,000 T (R B )
2R T02087% 7T E0.270/8 T Z B
& T B 32 7 B [0134,560,0000% B 19  H
& BEIZBRHENEFEH - At -
RARZBBITRABHERZERSD
ZEET SR R AR EMN Z%E
ERARARIRGREEIRS S o

150 20135 F 3R
RS EEER AR A A

notes:

On 28 June 2013, the Company issued and allotted 36,272,535 Shares at
HKS$0.618 per Share to the shareholders who elected to receive Shares in
the Company in lieu of cash for the 2012 final dividends pursuant to the
scrip dividend schemes announced by the Company on 27 May 2013. The
new Shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing Shares. For
more details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 27 May
2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company issued and
allotted an aggregate of 20,055,000 Shares at an exercise price HK$0.5 per
Share as pursuant to the exercise of share options. For more details, please
refer to Note 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company repurchased
34,560,000 Shares at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$8,003,000 before expenses at prices ranging from HK$0.208 to
HK$0.270 per Share on the Stock Exchange. The repurchased shares were
subsequently cancelled during the year. Accordingly, the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value thereof. The
premium payable on repurchase was charged against the share premium
account of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

34. f#fE 34. Reserves
rEE The Group
REBRAFERBEFECHES The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
EREHO RN EEREHRET - for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

¥ YN The Company
EXEE BHRE
RE  ROEE 1 i  REEA am
Capital Share
Share Share redemption option Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total

TEL TAL TAL TR TET TEL
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

R01F1 /1A Asat 1 January 2012 61513 740925 2,609 16,711 821,818

FRER Loss for the year - - - - (2565) (2565)
FREMZEKA  Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - = =

FRZEBELEE  Total comprehensive loss for the year - = = - (2,565) (2,565)
B2EDEZBRE  Dividend recognised as distribution - = = = (9,026) (9,026)
THEETRMD  Cancellation of issued shares (830) (7173) 830 - (830) (8,003)
RIEEERMM  Equity settled share-based transaction

pAT) - - - 1819 - 1819
72012%12A310  Asat 31 December 2012

R2013F181H and 1 January 2013 60,683 733,752 3,499 1,819 4,290 804,043
EREF Profit for the year = = = - 40,716 40,716
FREMZAMKA  Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - =
ERN2EKALE  Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 40,716 40,716
ENRERE Final dividend paid 726 (4589) - - - (3863)
TFEBRERE1T,2 Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise

TiER of share options 401 10069 - (443) = 10027
RS RN Equity settled share-based transactions

NRZZ5 - - - 4760 - 4760
2013128318 Asat 31 December 2013 61,810 739,232 3,499 6,136 45,006 855,683

35. AQTEEAEMEERZER, 35. Profit/loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of

Fi=] the Company

HZE2013F12A831BLEFE  AAF The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
A AFE (b & F %) /40,716,000 T ended 31 December 2013 which has been dealt with in the
(20124F : [E5182,565,0008 7 ) * B R financial statements of the Company amounted to approximately
KRR IEIRKRERIE HK$40,716,000 (2012: loss of HK$2,565,000).
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36.

i IR e

2008F 12838 » AR RPRRA A
BetEst &I ([ 2121 )) - BRIEZATE
RAB A REHERE T ASLEEESSK
BE REBMMBERSKERAA - HiE
B oen s HER - BRGHEER
RE BEFREFBH(EEK2A
) ARBEBARARRG -

BRENREZENBEENER
J& ~ 1T s H At 77 T O f5R SR R MR A T
B - BRI R R R % 8
R LA TR R R ARTT — 2R o

REBETEERNATRSE ()M
REBRERE AN AE R ®RE
RFTGIEERZWHE : (IR E
ERERERE A BRI AER S AR
RS ARERMAINEERZFY
B Ripk{d < mE - ARELEE
ESETERENREBRSENBER
& o

BREENAERSEEBBRER
HEHERE ZTEHRDRALHE
ARTETT AIATE ©

20135 F 3R
RS EEER AR A A

36.

Share Options

On 3 December 2008, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under
the Scheme, the Company may grant options to the directors
or employees of the Group, consultant or adviser, distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer and
business partner of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

Options may be granted on such terms and conditions in relation
to their vesting, exercise or otherwise as the directors may
determine in its absolute discretion, provided that such terms
and conditions shall not be inconsistent with any other terms
conditions of the Scheme.

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares on Main Boards stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
option; (ii) the average prices of the shares on Main Board as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

The share options are exercisable only if the Eligible Participants
remain in the service of the Group from the grant date of the
share options up to the designated exercise date.



36. MBIR#E(E) 36. Share Options (Continued)

201354 A38 - REBERASHE On 3 April 2013, the Group had granted 40,000,000 share options
& T & B % H140,000,00017 BE AR 4 o to certain employees of the Group.

F2013F 128318 » 5HEITE T H K17 As at 31 December 2013, options to subscribe for a total of
{5 2 BB I & 2L 0] 3R B8 240,445,000/% 240,445,000 Shares (the “Share Options") were outstanding under
AR (TEEARAE ) © the Scheme.

W ES
Employees 150500000 = = - 150500000 - (15055000) - 135,445,000 05 )
- - - - - 40000000 - - 40,000,000 08 )
B E3Z
Directors
S 20000000 - - - 20000000 = = - 20,000,000 05 @)
(ChiWen Fu
it 15000000 - - - 15000000 - (3000000) - 12,000,000 05 @
Shum Sai Chit
HER 15000000 - - - 15000000 - = - 15,000,000 05 @
(Chi Bi Fen
55 5000000 - - - 5000000 - - - 5,000,000 05 [
(uo Mengyong
BAx 5000000 - - - 5000000 - - - 5,000,000 05 )
Kwong Ping Man
BRH 5000000 - - - 5000000 - (2000000 - 3,000,000 05 )
Liu Hoi Keung
it 5000000 - - - 5000000 - = - 5,000,000 05 @
Sheng Hong
220500000 = - - 220300000 - (20055000) - 200,445,000 05 )
- - - - - 40000000 - - 40,000,000 08 )
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36. HEERE(E)

RIBBE 2 153K BRABRER R
THIAITEE

(a)

20135 F 3R

R2011E12 30 BHEITEE
BOSHBIT 2 2 SRR AE L DA
THAITHE

(i)

(ii)

BEETARAZEA
R B & $£55,000,0000%
R0 2 BE A% ([ R A8
BiEDmE - BRER
BB E2014510 A
TR IEAEM - FIEER

FERT 1T LARRER ¢
% % 22,000,0008%

BHm BEB
2012%11A1H
Z£2013F10A31
HIE(BRREERE
mE): &

fx %33,000,0000%

M5B EXE
BRI Z
werEE BH
201311 A1
H 220145108
JIHIE(BES
EMmABE) - RF
A R
BERNLERFIE
2 B8 74,000,000
B A% 1D

% 5B

B A B A A A B HH AT
R B & $£32,000,0008%
I < B (T 2 2508
RS - BRES
B BB E2015F10A
TR IEE - LFEER
WA T{E LARREE ¢

AR LR EIEA A R A A

36.

Share Options (Continued)
In accordance with the terms of the Share Options, the Share
Options are exercisable in the following manner:

(a) The Share Options of exercise price HK$0.5 granted on 30
December 2011 are exercisable in the following manner:

(i) in respect of the Share Options granted to certain
grantees to subscribe for a total of 55,000,000
Shares (“Type A Share Options”), the Share Options
are valid from the date of grant until 31 October
2014. The Type A Share Options are exercisable to
subscribe for:

a maximum of 22,000,000 Shares within
the period between 1 November 2012 to
31 October 2013 (both dates inclusive);
and

a maximum of 33,000,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2013 to 31 October
2014 (both dates inclusive). During the
year, 4,000,000 shares were subscribed
under this band of Type A Share Options;

(ii) in respect of the Share Options granted to other
grantees to subscribe for a total of 32,000,000
Shares (“Type B Share Options”), the Share Options
are valid from the date of grant until 31 October
2015. The Type B Share Options are exercisable to
subscribe for:



36.

fE IR ()

(a)

(&)
(i)

(&)

£%8,000,000 &
Hm- BEB
2012411 818
F2013F10A31
HIE(BEER
GI=DE

5% %12,000,000%
&t 55 00 £ X B
E M ARITE 2
@R R
B2013%F11 A1
H Z2014%10A
3IAE(BREE
EMHBE) - RF
N RIEZ AR
IREA LR BIE
R B& 71,000,000
RERR 1S ¢+ &

% %12,000,000%
f&1n 5 £ Bk
B M ARITEZ
BEAE - RHIE
2014%F11A1H
220151031
BIE(BEER
ME);

36.

Share Options (Continued)

(a)

(continued)

(ii)

(continued)

a maximum of 8,000,000 Shares within the
period between 1 November 2012 to 31
October 2013 (both dates inclusive);

a maximum of 12,000,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2013 to 31 October
2014 (both dates inclusive). During the
year, 1,000,000 Shares were subscribed
under this band of Type B Share Options;
and

a maximum of 12,000,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2014 to 31 October
2015 (both dates inclusive);
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36. HEERE(E)
@) (&)

(i) M E A4 AR AR
A] 7 B A& $£133,500,000
& fn z B ([ R R
EREDmS B
HAKE B EE017F
12A30B IEBH - &
127,500,0000% i1 2 R 4E
SRR AT A T{F LARRES -

£ %25,500,0004%
& ABH A
2012911 A1H
22013F10A31
RIEH(BREERE
e ):

% %25,500,0004%
f&15 5 00k >CER
E R ARITEZ
R B H
B20134F11 A1
H £2014F10A
B IH(BEE
EMB)>RNF
A RIBERRE
[ At R A1 E
8% 715,055,000
&A%

£% %25,500,0004%
f& 15 5 Hn kXX ER
EEARITHEZ
BERRE - BEIR
2014511 818
22015510831
RIE(BREEER
mHE):

% %%25,500,0004%
f% 19 500 B
TE I RAITE 2
RerRE - BER
201511818
£2016F10H31
HIE(BEERE
WE): &

£% %25,500,0008%
f&1D S0 X ER
EROAITHEZ
WEREE - BEIE
2016%F11A1H
F2017F12H30
BIE(BREERE
MHE): &

20135 F 3R
RS EEER AR A A

36.

Share Options (Continued)

(a)

(continued)

(ii) in respect of the Share Options granted to other
grantees to subscribe for a total of 133,500,000
Shares (“Type C Share Options”), the Share Options
are valid from the date of grant until 30 December
2017. The Type C Share Options in respect of
127,500,000 Shares are exercisable to subscribe for:

a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares within
the period between 1 November 2012 to
31 October 2013 (both dates inclusive);

a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2013 to 31 October
2014 (both dates inclusive). During the
year, 15,055,000 Shares were subscribed
under this band of Type C Share Options;

a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2014 to 31 October
2015 (both dates inclusive);

a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2015 to 31 October
2016 (both dates inclusive); and

a maximum of 25,500,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2016 to 30
December 2017 (both dates inclusive); and



36.

fE IR ()

(a)

(b)

(&)
(iv)

% R £k T56,000,0008% %
2 REBERERT R A
8 8201611 H1H &
2017412 A308 LE(B4E
BEMB)ITE

M20135FE3H19R B HE 1T 18
B08B T 2 % LB AE AR A
THRITE -

(@)

FAETEBEARDA
B A ££25,000,0008% A%
M ERENTHEER
DME  BREER
H B H 22015510 A31
HiEB - TiERERE
AJTT{EREE -

. Bx %12,500,000/%
i & HE A8
2013%F 11 A1H
ZF2014F10H31
BIE(BEERE
mHE): &

. % %12,500,000/%
f& 10 5 0 >
B M ARITE 2
BEARE - REE
2014%F11 A8
Z£2015%F10H31
HIE(BEERE
mHE):

36.

Share Options (Continued)
(a) (continued)

(iv)

the Type C Share Options in respect of the
remaining 6,000,000 Shares are exercisable within
the period between 1 November 2016 to 30
December 2017 (both dates inclusive).

(b) The Share Options of exercise price HK$0.8 granted on 19
March 2013 are exercisable in the following manner:

in respect of the Share Options granted to certain
grantees to subscribe for a total of 25,000,000
Shares (“Type D Share Options”), the Share Options
are valid from the date of grant until 31 October
2015. The Type D Share Options are exercisable to
subscribe for:

a maximum of 12,500,000 Shares within
the period between 1 November 2013 to
31 October 2014 (both dates inclusive);
and

a maximum of 12,500,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2014 to 31 October
2015 (both dates inclusive);
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(ii) FhA H b AR AR A
2 B 4 ££15,000,0004%
R 2 B AR ([ AR BE
KHEEME - BRER
o HBHZE2018F128
3T LA - KIEBER
FERITIE ARREE -

£ %3,000,000 f%
Ik &HEAE
201311 A1H
F2014%10H31
RIE(BREER
MHE):

£% 23,000,000 A%
f&15 5 00k >CER
FERARTITIE 2 48
HhE BB
201411818
22015%F10A31
AIEH(BEER
ME):

£x%3,000,000 A%
f% 7 500 £ SCER
ERARITE 248
%A AHAE
201511 A1H
220165 10A31
BIH(BEER
MH):

% %3,000,000 A%
[&1n 5 00 X ER
ERARITE 248
HhE BHA
2016511 81H
F2017F10A31
BIE(BREERE
MH): &

£ %3,000,000 A%
R 2 hn e
SERARTITE 2 48
FREE - A& H2017
F1181H 22018
F12A3181H(E
EEEMA) °

20135 F 3R
RS EEER AR A A

36.

Share Options (Continued)
(continued)

(b)

(i)

in respect of the Share Options granted to other
grantees to subscribe for a total of 15,000,000
Shares (“Type E Share Options”), the Share Options
are valid from the date of grant until 31 December
2018. The Type E Share Options are exercisable to
subscribe for:

a maximum of 3,000,000 Shares within the
period between 1 November 2013 to 31
October 2014 (both dates inclusive);

a maximum of 3,000,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2014 to 31 October
2015 (both dates inclusive);

a maximum of 3,000,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2015 to 31 October
2016 (both dates inclusive);

a maximum of 3,000,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2016 to 31 October
2017 (both dates inclusive); and

a maximum of 3,000,000 Shares plus
aggregate balance not yet exercised
in paragraph above within the period
between 1 November 2017 to 31
December 2018 (both dates inclusive).
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36.

B RE ()
RI|BEIR - HARTTEBREBFUT

/

36. Share Options (Continued)
Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period have

fEm B AR - 1T EARATIEE o the following expiry date, exercise period and exercise prices.
R REER ey =R 1T BRITEE IBRERE
Number of
Type of Share Exercise prices Share Options
Options Expiry date Exercise period per Share 2013 2012
BT T B Fix
HK$ ‘000 ‘000
SR 2014 10A31H H2012F 11 A1HEZE 0.5 51,000 55,000
20145F10A31H
Type A 31 October 2014 From 1 November 2012
to 31 October 2014
%8 20156F10A318 B2012F 1M1 A1BRE 0.5 31,000 32,000
2015510 H31H
Type B 31 October 2015 From 1 November 2012
to 31 October 2015
AkE 2017FF12A308 B2012F 11 A1BRERE 0.5 112,445 127,500
2017412 A30H
Type C 30 December 2017  From 1 November 2012
to 30 December 2017
017412 A30H H2016F11 A1HEE 0.5 6,000 6,000
2017812 A30H
30 December 2017 From 1 November 2016
to 30 December 2017
TH 2015910 A31H H2013F 11 A1HEZR 038 25,000 =
2015%F10A31H
Type D 31 October 2015 From 1 November 2013
to 31 October 2015
KA 201812 A31H H2013F 11 A1HER 0.8 15,000 =
2018412 A31H
Type E 31 December 2018 From 1 November 2013

to 31 December 2018

240,445 220,500

HE2011F12A31HIEFE @ RHEH
BN A e — ET R HT HAME B (B
*%t?irﬁ ﬁau)\%ﬁfﬁ*%ﬁﬁﬁé%ﬂr
ERZARKEL A BB

E(EE‘J’HXTAA?)%E@%%T/E )

LT HEE - %EE@H&E@*&%EE{%
Z3920%E6637% © F[F &R F| X
0.33%%1.08% - i’miﬁi@ﬁ 5108 %
FHI K1 43%)% B K o 178 BiA%(E B ¥R
KR4 F%ﬁﬁﬁrgm&% iR IE H
20065E7 A31H Z2011€E12831H &
EERENRTONAERSD - B
20135128318 IF F E © 491,047,000
/;é;qca.ﬁr ?’QEE&EWJEEWA

EE

%ﬂfo
b R
\\’
=

The options granted during the year ended 31 December
2011 determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$0.217, at
the grant date and adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision,
exercise price shown above, standard deviation of expected share
price return of 39.20% to 66.37%, annual risk-free interest rate of
0.33% to 1.08%, expected life of options of approximately 1 to 6
years and dividend payout ratio of 1.43%. The volatility measured
at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based
on statistical analysis of daily share prices from 31 July 2006 to
31 December 2011. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
approximately HK$1,047,000 were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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36. BRE(E) - 36. Share Options (Continued)
B ZE201B3FN2ABHILEFEE BHD The fair value of options granted during the year ended 31
BREATEERM R — TR December 2013 determined using the Black-Scholes valuation
EEERNETE - 494358300008 7T ° model was approximately HK$5,830,000. The significant inputs
BWAZEEERANEZAERZAR into the model were share price of HK$0.80, at the grant date
& B BRI (B0.807E T (B s iR (9 and adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision, exercise price
TR EELRE) - FlTEE shown above, expected volatility ranged from 42.05% to 52.22%,
T8 HA R 18 T F42.05%FE5220% ~ FE annual risk-free interest rate of 0.11% to 0.58%, expected life of
2 2, % A1) F0.11%20.58% + #J1 6:1:52 options of approximately 1.6 to 5.2 years and dividend payout
FIEEIER $E¢Hﬂ&2 479%E B.5K o 17 ratio of 2.47%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
T8 HA IR (B B R A9 12 2 TF;Eﬁﬁn-I—EEO/RZ of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis
8 - J3AR & #2007 9 A 25 8 220134 of daily share prices from 25 September 2007 to 19 March
3A19B B HRENSF O ES 2013. During the year ended 31 December 2013, approximately
£ e B E2013F12A318 IEFE - i@ HK$3,713,000 were charged to the consolidated statement of
3, 71300%§{EEDJF7\ZT\ SEm&EHAMmD profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
éﬁ:t2OW3EF12ﬁ%31EiLthEEEﬂFﬁ 29 During the year ended 31 December 2013, the share-based
4,760 ooo,%rc(zo 24F 1 1,819,000/ 7T) payments of approximately HK$4,760,000 (2012: HK$1,819,000)
LA R 5 5 B 7S it 2 3K \qu)\ZT SRk were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
&ﬁf@iﬁﬂﬁl R7% A © other comprehensive income.
37. HENEAQA ] 37. Disposal of Subsidiaries
R2012F11 8298 © KRR ZEN B On 29 November 2012, Century Sunshine Ecological Technology
ARG AR AR AR R — Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
BBV E=F I RTKEE HED into and completed a sale and purchase agreement with an
EEXERESBIERAR AT REHKT independent third party to dispose of 100% equity interest in
BRARIZE2MEAE - RHKER Sunshine Partners Financial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries,
20135F2 H26 A TE /373,141,987 87T ° for a consideration as determined on 26 February 2013 at
HK$73,141,987.
MEBARNEEBRZFEENT The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as
follows:
2012611 829H
29 November 2012
7870
HK$'000
B2 FEE ! Net assets disposed of:
ME - BE REE Property, plant and equipment 678
BVEE. Intangible assets 22,940
RIETIR A & Deferred tax assets 308
%%&Elﬁ)@”ﬁ RIE - JBNRIERIZE  Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits 27,885
HIEEBERE Investments held for trading 14,930
FekEREEER Cash and cash equivalents 43,350
EALTIEE (R Deferred tax liabilities (185)
B 5 N EmEMNRIE Trade and other payables (13,831)
E‘&E\gﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ Income tax payables [0)
ae Borrowings (4,940)
91,133
B E R Release of other reserve 254
W E e Release of translation reserve 197
IR Non-controlling interests (16,478)
HENBARER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (1,964)
BRE Total consideration 73,142
HEUTAHASA : Satisfied by:
R Cash 73,142
REHEFHREMA ¢ Net cash inflow from disposal:
HeNE Cash consideration 73,142
WK ERIE Consideration receivables (7,536)
e R RERBSER Cash and cash equivalents disposed (43,350)
22,256
160 2013FF
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37.

38.

HEMB AT (&)
H20NRFIAREHE B HEHA -
MmfBAREEREANEL MR
BER - ZEWB AR ERRALY
11,061,000/ JT K& #711,705,00078 JT /&5
BIVREZE2012F12A831BIEFE 2
REEERPER -

Ay

(a)

(b)

BREE

37.

38.

Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

For the period from 1 January 2012 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiaries were engaged in financial services business
mainly in Hong Kong. The revenue contributed by the subsidiaries
were approximately HK$11,061,000 and loss of approximately
HKS$11,705,000 has recognised in the Group's profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

Commitments
(a) Capital Commitments
AEH b /NC|
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FHT FET FHT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

EETABEM AR Capital expenditure
IRAE T ERE in respect of the

Bz B acquisition of

BEYME - BE property, plant and
Kz BN equipment
X contracted for but

not provided in the
consolidated financial

statements

109,990 186,429 - -

RERAEE

A EBERAEA
AEERETAREHEAE HE
HERERFEIER - %F
MEZAH  AREE 25X
RBRIENEB TR -

RBEHR - AEERARF
FERRBE AR EEY
AT 51 HATE 2 HA 78 A 0 KR

(b) Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as Lessee
The Group leases various office premises and warehouses
under non-cancellable lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

SEEENT fall due as follows:
rEE PN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—F A Within one year 2,719 2,027 - -
FZFEZERF Inthe second to
(BIEEHEME) fifth years inclusive 3,623 3,891 - =
Jidsh o lakad Over five years 3,442 681 - -
9,784 6,599 = -
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38. A&IE(E)

(b)

R ERER)
EEBERHEA
FIECRKEREMERRE=
FEREREP -

RBER - AEE ST
BR&xEBAONREHRPF]
#

38.

Commitments (Continued)

(b) Operating Lease Commitments (Continued)
The Group as Lessor
All of the investment properties held have committed
tenants for the next three year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

rEE PN
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

FET FAT FER FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 3,554 6,118 - =
F_FZERF Inthe second to

(BIEBEMSE) fifth years inclusive 4,193 3,837 - =

7,747 9,955 - =

39. ERBEEALIRS

SriA M RR A A REIN

FAXR

SECETUTEEREALRS ¢

39.

Material Related Party Transactions

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following significant
related party transactions during the year.

(a) FEEBEAEME (a) Key Management Compensation
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’000 HKS$'000
B2 (KIE13) Directors (Note 13) 3,228 2,769
EMFEERAE : Other key management personnel:
FeREMTHEEEAH Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 1,792 1,676
5,020 4,445
(b) MNELEEERBIESREA R (b)  Mr. Chi Wen Fu has given an undertaking to IFC to
VEH &GS - AR R R4 maintain a minimum level of shareholding in the
FaESEKRFEAEEEMRR Company as collateral of the borrowings as detailed in
A5 2 RMEE30 © 12013411 Note 30. In November 2013, the undertaking was released
A ERZEREZHEE upon the full payment of the borrowings.
R D IERRRR o
201355

WAL R BB R A
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39.

40.

41.

BERBEALRS (E)

() REZE2012F128318IFE -
A X B AT EEH B A BB KE
HFABRARREM N E LER
LA RE SRR - »
B 1% W ER & AR 491,00075 7T
REETT -

(BERS

2013438 AEBE M A &%
= T & B 1% 140,000,000 B ML #E
(2012FF : £ ) - H =2013%F12H31H
IEEEHR - 494,760,0005 7T(2012
& 11,819,000/ 7T ) LARR 17 B EL /2 1+
RABAGZABFEREMEEWER
A o BB 2K 36 °

AR BHRIER 201345 A 27 B A2 LA
IR B ETEl - R20135F6 288 LA &
B%0.6187 L 31T K Bid & IR E {B0.02
I 236,272,535 TR IR - 48T
20125 R EAAR BB B B 2 I
R iEBREARQRRE BT
BT EFZFERESET - FIEBL2HA
AN RIA201345 A27 B3 2 K o

MEAREEERERD 225
HE201FE12ABIEEE  AEH
BBREEWNB AR EEREER AT
([EE])EMAF ERER R ZERE
FRAB([ R ERE ) (BITE A+ B
BB AT )A H21.6%7 B UK A HE
o RER P BT

R2013F1 A158 - ZRREZEMB AR
REEESFFEAE(TBREDT
B#) - NA B /LA%I32,089,00078 0.2
RERABEERERRRENE T
BEAR21.8% ° FHIERL2HARAR A A
20131 A16H Z A% -

R2013F1A16H - B8 8 — 5B
VNEZHRMNAEH REBBEALY
3,238,000/ L 2 B[R % % = 7 W hE
AR B 8 B BT TRR AN 2.2% ©

2013F6 H30H @ AR B EE 1T
% EEEEERBEITRODEE D
3% + AS|HEREINEHE R RIS EH ©

39.

40.

41.

Material Related-Party Transactions (Continued)

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2012, Partners
Capital Securities Limited, a former indirect subsidiary
of the Company, received fee amount of approximately
HK$1,000 and HKSNil from Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Mr. Shum
Sai Chit respectively, for the financial services provided.

Non-Cash Transactions

On 3 April 2013, the Group had granted 40,000,000 Share
Options (2012: Nil) to certain employees of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, the share-based payments
of approximately HK$4,760,000 (2012: HK$1,819,000) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For more details, please refer to Note 36.

On 28 June 2013, the Company issued and allotted 36,272,535
new fully paid shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company at
HK$0.618 to the shareholders who elected to shares who elected
to receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash for the 2012 final
dividends pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes announced
by the Company on 27 May 2013. The new ordinary shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company. For more details, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 27 May 2013.

Change in Ownership Interest in a Subsidiary
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group, through
a wholly-owned subsidiary, Capital Idea Investments Limited
(“Capital Idea”), increased in aggregate of 21.6% effective equity
interest in China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology Holdings
Limited (“China Rare Earth Magnesium”) (formerly Known as China
Magnesium Limited). Details of the transactions as follows:

On 15 January 2013, Capital Idea, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract with Mr. Miao
Xi Zhu (“Mr. Miao") in relation to acquisition of 21.8% of the issued
share capital of China Rare Earth Magnesium at a consideration
of approximately HK$32,089,000 from Mr. Miao. For more details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 16 January
2013.

On 16 January 2013, Capital Idea entered into the contract with
an independent third party in relation to acquisition of 2.2%
of the issued share capital of China Rare Earth Magnesium at
a consideration of approximately HK$3,238,000 from that third

party.

On 30 June 2013, China Rare Earth Magnesium has issued new
shares of an aggregate approximately 3% of the enlarged number
of issued shares in order to recruit new technological and
strategic investors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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41. MEBAREEEELZ Z®E 41. Change in Ownership Interest in a Subsidiary
(&) (Continued)
BREMRR S - RNEE D R #ERRE D As a result of the above transactions, the Group recognised a
FEVE AR HE 25 4931,812,000/8 JT A1 AN E decrease in non-controlling interests and increase in other reserve
5 %953,383,0008 7T © of approximately HK$31,812,000 and HK$53,383,000 respectively.
HZE0NFNANBILEFE  A&H During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group, through
FR—FREFE%NHE AR - a 75% indirectly owned subsidiary, acquired additional 9.91%
MEBEAXESERAAITERES]D (effectively 7.43%) equity interest in Partners Capital Securities
Z IR R - LATR & 492,000,000 Limited (“Partners Capital”) from the non-controlling interests
T BB 18 K78 25 2 BEHN.O1%HE 25 of Partners Capital at a cash consideration of approximately
(BB /R743%) - AE B A It # R HK$2,000,000. The Group recognised a decrease in non-
DI ERMEMEE - DRAR controlling interests and other reserve of approximately
1,745,000/ 7T F1254,0007 7T HK$ 1,745,000 and HK$254,000 respectively.
42, HAREME 42, Contingent Liabilities
rEH PN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FExT FAT FExT FAxT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
MIRTTIEME 2 Financial guarantees
B TS HEAR given to banks - = 114,050 =
I AR REBERRM AT 28 This represents the aggregate amounts that could be required to
BH - H A #49114,050,00078 78 (20124512 be paid if the guarantees were called upon in entirety, of which
A318 : BB L) EARTERAD approximately HK$114,050,000 (31 December 2012: HKS$Nil) has
FA o RERE HAZR + 4985,0007% 7T (2012 been utilised by the bank’s borrowers. At the end of the reporting
F12A318 : THEL)ERERE K period, an amount of approximately HK$85,000 (31 December
MEANERAEE(RHFE29) o 2012: HKSNil) has been recognised in the statement of financial
position as liabilities (see Note 29).
43. HREHEEE 43, Events after the Reporting Period
R2014F1H28H * KRR EBEEE £ On 28 January 2014, the Company and IFC entered into a share
BARGI RO BEHZ - =RKRHRA subscription agreement, pursuant to which, IFC has agreed to
Bz BIREESRARREATR subscribe for an aggregate of 155,077,000 fully paid subscription
RERM07SBIL B REEH shares at HK$0.75 each. The relevant subscription was completed
155,077,000 f& B &R IR AN 2 2N A &) 73 on 24 February 2014. For more details, please refer to the
Bk - BERESIE - ©R201452 Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2014.
R24B 5% - 5FIEE2HM AR E HH
B2014F2 A48 2 R4 -
44, HEBEEF 44. Comparatives
ETHRSECDEETHE  UFE Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
REZ 2255 - with current year's presentation.
45. RETHBEESMBHRR 45. Authorisation for Issue of Consolidated Financial
Statements
BEE2R2014F3 A58 #HtfE & E#E T The consolidated financial statements were approved and
BIRE B HE © authorised for issue by the board of directors on 5 March 2014.
2013FF
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